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United States

Securities and Exchange Commission
Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-Q

Quarterly Report Pursuant to Section 13 or 15(d) othe Securities Exchange Act of 193
For the quarterly period ended: July 2, 2011

O Transition Report Pursuant to Section 13 or 15(d) bthe Securities Exchange Act of 193
For the transition period from to

Commission File Number: 001-31410

COTT CORPORATION

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its chaetr)

CANADA 98-0154711
(State or Other Jurisdiction of (IRS Employer
Incorporation or Organization) Identification No.)

6525 VISCOUNT ROAD
MISSISSAUGA, ONTARIO

5519 WEST IDLEWILD AVE L4V 1H6
TAMPA, FLORIDA 33634
(Address of principal executive offices) (Zip Code)

Registrant’s telephone number, including area code(905) 672-1900 and (813) 313-1800

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant ¢ filed all reports required to be filed by Seeti or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 mofah$or such shorter period that the registrans wemjuired to file such reports), and
(2) has been subject to such filing requirementshe past 90 days. Ye&l No O

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant lsnstted electronically and posted on its corpo¥&b site, if any, every Interactive
Data File required to be submitted and posted puntsio Rule 405 of Regulation S-T during the prawgd2 months (or for such shorter
period that the registrant was required to submit @ost such files). YedX] No O

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantlarge accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, maccelerated filer, or a smaller
reporting company. See the definitions of “largeederated filer,” “accelerated filer” and “small@porting company” in Rule 12b-2 of the
Exchange Act.

Large accelerated fili [ Accelerated filel

Non-accelerated file [0  (do not check if a smaller reporting compa Smaller reporting compar [J
Indicate by check mark whether the registrantshell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exgle Act). Yes[O No
Indicate the number of shares outstanding of e&tiedssuer’s classes of common stock, as ofdtest practicable date.

Class Outstanding at August 9, 20.
Common Stock, no par value per sh 94,851,230 share
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ltem 1. Financial Statements

Cott Corporation
Consolidated Statements of Operations

(in millions of U.S. dollars, except share and pbare amounts)

Unaudited

PART | — FINANCIAL INFORMATION

For the Three Months Ended

For the Six Months Ended

July 2, 2011 July 3, 2010 July 2, 2011 July 3, 20(
Revenue, ne $ 640 $ 4245 $1,174.: $ 787.
Cost of sales 552.( 351.2 1,016.! 656.¢
Gross profit 88.(C 73.t 157.€ 130.%
Selling, general and administrative exper 45.1 34.t 90.2 66.¢
Loss on disposal of property, plant & equipm — (0.2) — 0.1
Restructuring — — — (0.5
Operating income 42.¢ 39.1 67.2 64.2
Other expense, n — 0.t 0.8 2.3
Interest expense, net 14.€ 6.1 29.C 12.2
Income before income taxe 28.% 32t 37.¢ 49.¢€
Income tax expense 0.7 8.8 2.3 13.2
Net income $ 27.¢ $ 237 $ 35.:& $ 36«
Less: Net income attributable to non-controllintenests 1.1 1.4 2.C 2.€
Net income attributed to Cott Corporation $ 26:f $ 22: $ 33 $ 33
Net income per common share attributed to Cott Corpration
Basic $ 0.2¢ $ 0.2¢ $ 0.3t $ 0.4z
Diluted $ 0.2¢ $ 0.2¢ $ 0.3t $ 0.4z
Weighted average outstanding shares (thousands) ahuted to Cott Corporation
Basic 94,13’ 80,42¢ 94,10° 80,40:
Diluted 95,52¢ 80,881 95,42 80,86:

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofélmmsolidated financial statements.

1
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Cott Corporation

Consolidated Balance Sheets

(in millions of U.S. dollars, except share amounts)
Unaudited

ASSETS

Current assett

Cash & cash equivalen

Accounts receivable, net of allowance of $10.43%& of January 1, 201
Income taxes recoverat

Inventories

Prepaid expenses and other assets

Total current assets

Property, plant & equipmel
Goodwill

Intangibles and other ass:
Deferred income taxe
Other tax receivable

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Current liabilities

Shor-term borrowings

Current maturities of lor-term deb
Contingent consideration ei-out
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities

Total current liabilities

Long-term debt
Deferred income taxe
Other long-term liabilities

Total liabilities
Equity

Capital stock, no pe- 94,851,230 (January 1, 20- 94,750,120) shares issu
Treasury stocl

Additional paic-in-capital

Retained earning

Accumulated other comprehensive loss

Total Cott Corporation equity

Non-controlling interests

Total equity

Total liabilities and equity

July 2, 201!

$ 24C
287 .
12.¢
242.2
32.5

599.(

501.(
131.c
357.1
2.7
2.7

31,503

$ 20.1
5.4

33.2
281.5

340.4

603.2
44.F
21.(

1,009.:

395.7
2.1)
43.F
139.€
(6.3)
570.¢
14.1

584.i
$ 1,593.¢

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofélmmsolidated financial statements.

2

January 1, 201:

$ 48.2
213.¢

0.2

2155

32.7

510.c

503.¢
130.z
371.1
2.5
11.5

6.C
32.2
276.¢

322.5

605.5
43.¢
22.2

994.(

395.¢
(3.2)

40.£

106.£
(17.5)

522.:

13.C

535.2
$ 1,529.
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Cott Corporation

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
(in millions of U.S. dollars)

Unaudited

Operating Activities

Net income

Depreciation & amortizatio

Amortization of financing fee

Shar-based compensation expel

Increase (decrease) in deferred income t

Contract termination gai

Contract termination paymer

Other nor-cash item:

Change in operating assets and liabilit
Accounts receivabl
Inventories
Prepaid expenses and other current a:
Other asset
Accounts payable and accrued liabilit
Income taxes recoverak

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activi

Investing Activities
Additions to property, plant & equipme
Additions to intangible & other asse
Other investing activitie

Net cash used in investing activit|

Financing Activities
Payments of lor-term debt
Borrowings under ABL
Payments under AB
Distributions to no-controlling interest:
Financing fee:

Net cash (used in) provided by financing activi
Effect of exchange rate changes on ¢
Net decrease in cash & cash equivalents
Cash & cash equivalents, beginning of perio

Cash & cash equivalents, end of perio

Supplemental Disclosures of Cash Flow information
Cash paid for intere:
Cash paid (received) for income taxes,

For the Three Months Ended

For the Six Months Ended

July 2, 201!

$ 27.¢
23.¢

0.9

2.7

1.C

(10.6)
(2.5)
(1.9

(15.1)

2.1)
43.€
(58.7)
0.9)

(18.9)
0.1

(11.§)
35.€

$ 24.C

$ 10.2
$ 0.8

July 3, 2010 July 2, 2011 July 3, 201(
$ 237 $ 35.: $ 36«
14. 47.4 30.¢
0. 1.8 1.C
1.2 3.8 1.7

— 1. (0.1)
(0.9 — —
— — (4.€)
1.1 1.8 4.
(24.9) (71.0 (46.9)
(4.0) (22.7) (16.7)
1.€ 1.2 2.4
(0.6) (0.7) (1.1)
11. 2.¢ 7.8
7.C (3.6) 24.4
31.2 (4.3 39.
(10.5) (23.9) (18.1)
(2.9) (2.5 (3.4)
0.2 1.7 0.4
(12.5) (27.5) (21.2)
(2.9 (3.4) (16.7)
83. 143.4 142.(
(100.§) (131.) (151.6)
(0.€) (2.5 (2.7)
— — (0.2)
(21.2) 6.3 (28.6)
0.6) 1.3 (0.4)
2.9 (24.2) (10.6)
23.2 48.2 30.¢
$ 20r $  24c $ 20.:
$ 10z $ 27¢ $ 11.€
$ 1. $ 42 $ (11.9

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofélmmsolidated financial statements.

3
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Cott Corporation

Consolidated Statements of Equity

(in millions of U.S. dollars, except share amounts)
Unaudited

Cott Corporation Equity

Accumulated

" Non-
N(:u(;?r?riroﬁf ’\“I'L:?;sirrgf Common Treasury Additonal Retained Comgrtgr?(rensiw Controlling
Shares Shares Paid-in- Total
(In thousands) (In thousands) Shares Shares Capital Earnings Loss Interests Equity
Balance at January 2,

2010 81,33: 150/ $322t $ (449 $ 374 $51¢& 3% (21.9 $ 15 $401.:
Treasury shares issued -

PSU Plar — (437) — 1.1 (1.2 — — — —
Tax impact of PSU

distributions — — — — 0.7 — — — 0.7
Treasury shares issued -

EISPP — (@) — — — — — — —
Share-based

compensatiol 79 — — — 1.7 — — — 1.7
Distributions to non-

controlling interest: — — — — — — — (2.7) (2.7)
Comprehensive incorr

Currency
translation
adjustmen — — — — — — (6.€) — (6.€)
Pension liabilities — — — — — — 0.2 — 0.2
Unrealized gain o
derivative
instruments, ne
of income tax — — — — — — 0.1 — 0.1
Net income — — — — — 33.¢ — 2.6 36.4
Balance at July 3, 201( 81,41( 1,066 $322t $ (3.3 $ 387 & 85€ $ (2760 $ 15z $431.]
Balance at January 1,

2011 94,75( 1,051 $395¢ $ (3.2 $ 40t $106f 3% (A75) $ 13.C $535.
Common shares issu 25 — 0.1 — — — — — 0.1
Treasury shares issuec

PSU Plar — (1871) — 0.5 (0.5) — — — —
Treasury shares issued -

EISPP — (19€) — 0.€ (0.€) — — — —
Common Shares issuel

Directors’ Share

Award 76 — — — 0.7 — — — 0.7
Share-based

compensatiol — — — — 3.1 — — — 3.1
Contribution to non-

controlling interest: — — — — — — — 1.8 1.8
Distributions to non-

controlling interest: — — — — — — — (2.5 (2.5
Comprehensive incorr

Currency
translation
adjustmen — — — — — — 10.¢ (0.2 10.€
Pension liabilities — — — — — — 04 — 04
Net income — — — — — 33.c — 2.C 35.Z
Balance at July 2, 201: 94,85 674 $395.7 $ (2.1) $ 43EF $139¢ $ (6.3 $ 141 $584.]

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofélemsolidated financial statements.

4
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Cott Corporation

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income
(in millions of U.S. dollars)

Unaudited

Net income

Other comprehensive income (loss), net of
Currency translation adjustme
Pension liabilities
Unrealized (loss) gain on derivative instrume

Total other comprehensive income (loss)

Comprehensive income
Less: Net income attributable to r-controlling interest:

Comprehensive income attributed to Cott Corporation

For the Three Months Ended

For the Six Months Ended

July 2, 2011
$ 27
1.3
0.2
(0.9)
1.2
$ 28
1.1
$ 27t

July 3, 201( July 2, 2017
$ 23.7 $ 35.:
(6.9 10.€
— 0.4
0.2 —
(6.79) 11.(
$ 17.C $ 46.:
1.4 2.C
$ 15.€ $ 44.:

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofél@msolidated financial statements.

July 3, 201(
$ 36.
(6.6)
0.2
0.1
(6.9)
$ 30.1
2.6
$  27.F
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Cott Corporation
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Unaudited

Note 1 — Business and Recent Accounting Pronouncente
Description of Busines:

” ou ” ” ou ”

Cott Corporation, together with its consolidatedsidiaries (“Cott,” “the Company,” “our Company,Cbtt Corporation,” “we,” “us,’or
“our”), is the world’s largest retailer brand beage company. Our product lines include carbonatéidisinks (“CSDs"), clear, still and
sparkling flavored waters, energy-related drink&g, juice-based products, bottled water and réadyink teas.

Basis of Presentatiol

The accompanying interim unaudited consolidatedrfaial statements have been prepared in accordatitéhe instructions to Form
10-Q and Article 10 of Regulation S-X and in ac@orce with U.S. generally accepted accounting glasi(“GAAP”) for interim financial
reporting. Accordingly, they do not include all@nfnation and notes presented in the annual cormdetidinancial statements in conformity
with U.S. GAAP. In the opinion of management, ajustments (consisting of normal recurring acciuetsisidered necessary for a fair
statement of our results of operations for therintgoeriods reported and of our financial conditasnof the date of the interim balance sheet
have been included. This Quarterly Report on Fobr@QIshould be read in conjunction with the annuaited consolidated financial
statements and accompanying notes in our AnnuabiRep Form 10-K for the year ended January 1, 20hg& accounting policies used in
these interim consolidated financial statementcansistent with those used in the annual congelitiinancial statements.

The presentation of these interim consolidatedniife statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP regsi management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the amoepested in the consolidated financial statementiseaxtompanying notes.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

ASU 201-13— Effect of Denominating the Exercise Price 8hare-Based Payment Award in the Currency of thek&t in Which the
Underlying Equity Security Trades

In April 2010, the Financial Accounting Standardsad (“FASB”) issued Accounting Standards UpdaeSt”) 2010-13, “Effect of
Denominating the Exercise Price of a Share-BasgthBat Award in the Currency of the Market in Whtble Underlying Equity Security
Trades,” to address the classification of an emg#aghare-based payment award with an exercisedqeigaminated in the currency of a
market in which the underlying equity security #adThis update provides amendments to Topic 7t&tdy that an employee share-based
payment award with an exercise price denominateddrcurrency of a market in which a substantiatipo of the entity’s equity securities
trades should not be considered to contain a dondtbat is not a market, performance, or servar&dion. Therefore, an entity would not
classify such an award as a liability if it otheseiqualifies as equity. We adopted the provisidrhis standard during the first quarter of
2011. This standard does not have an impact onansgolidated financial statements.

ASU 201-05— Comprehensive Income: Presentation of Compste Income

In June 2011, the FASB amended its guidance oprésentation of comprehensive income in finandatesnents to improve the
comparability, consistency and transparency ofrfiiel reporting and to increase the prominencéenii$ that are recorded in other
comprehensive income. The new accounting guidaempgines entities to report components of comprafiemscome in either (i) a
continuous statement of comprehensive income Jotwd separate but consecutive statements. Thesioag of this new guidance are
effective for fiscal years, and interim periodshiitthose years, beginning after December 15, 20flare currently evaluating the impact
our financial statements of adopting this guidance.
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Note 2 — Acquisitions

On August 17, 2010, we completed the acquisitibe {Cliffstar Acquisition”) of substantially all dhe assets and liabilities of Cliffstar
Corporation (“Cliffstar”)and its affiliated companies for approximately $®80million payable in cash, $14.0 million in defegirconsideratio
to be paid over three years and contingent coreiderof up to $55.0 million. The first $15.0 mdh of the contingent consideration is based
upon the achievement of milestones in certain esiparprojects in 2010, which were achieved in 20k remainder of the contingent
consideration is based on the achievement of ogpiformance measures during the fiscal year gnthnuary 1, 2011. The fair value of the
contingent consideration was $33.2 million as d¢§ 24 2011. The estimated working capital amouns wabject to final adjustment and on
February 11, 2011, the parties agreed that thévineking capital amount was $3.0 million as congzhto the original estimate of $7.7
million.

We were notified on May 9, 2011 by the seller aff€ar of certain objections to the performanceamees used to calculate the
contingent consideration, and the seller assertddim for amounts in excess of the amounts accagetbntingent consideration at July 2,
2011. For certain of the objections, Cott assectrthterclaims against the seller, the settlementhac¢h will be under binding arbitration
processes according to the terms of the assetgerckgreement. We believe the fair value of thérogent consideration has been properly
recorded in accordance with the asset purchaseragrdg and we have not adjusted our estimated daievfor the objections raised by the
seller or for our counterclaims. The final resaatof these matters may result in amounts payattieet seller that may materially vary from
our current estimated fair value, however we areetuly not able to estimate a range of such ams@hanges in the fair value of contingent
consideration will be recorded in our Consolida&dtement of Operations. On July 29, 2011, Cotteraadinterim payment of $21.0 million
to the seller, representing $25.7 million for updited amounts of the contingent considerationphat$4.7 million refund due to Cott as a
result of the final determination of working capitany additional payment to the seller as deterdiby the arbitrator may result in interest
payable at a rate of 15% per annum per the terrtisecdisset purchase agreement.

Supplemental Pro Forma Data

The following unaudited pro forma financial infortiwan for the three and six months ended July 302@dspectively, represent the
combined results of our operations as if the Qhif#\cquisition had occurred on January 3, 201@ Thaudited pro forma results reflect
certain adjustments related to the Cliffstar Acijigis such as increased amortization expense ouil@thjintangible assets resulting from the
preliminary fair valuation of assets acquired. Tinaudited pro forma financial information does netessarily reflect the results of
operations that would have occurred had we operdedsingle entity during such period.

For the Three Months Endec For the Six Months Endec
(in millions of U.S. dollars, except share amoul July 3, 2010 July 3, 2010
Revenue $ 588.¢ $ 1,117.°
Net income 25.1 41.4
Net income per common share, dilu $ 0.27 $ 0.44

Other

During the second quarter, our majority owned slibgy acquired a grocery retailer’s private labeVdérage business which required
Cott to contribute $1.8 million to the subsidiafne identified assets are recorded at their estidhfatir values per preliminary valuations and
may change based on the result of final valuations.

Note 3 — Share-Based Compensation

The table below summarizes the share-based contpansapense for the three and six months ended2JW011 and July 3, 2010,
respectively. This share-based compensation expesseecorded in selling, general, and administeatixpenses in our Consolidated
Statements of Operations. As used below: (i) “PStde&n performance share units granted under oundeteand Restated Performance
Share Unit Plan, (ii) “Performance-based RSUs” mesatricted share units with performance-basednggranted under the Company’s
2010 Equity Incentive Plan (the “2010 Equity IndeatPlan”); (iii) “Time-based RSUs” mean restrictgltlare units with time-based vesting
granted under the 2010 Equity Incentive Plan,‘®&IBPP” means executive incentive share purchaa® pind (v) “Director share units”
mean common shares granted to the non-managemaertianeof Cott's Board of Directors under the 204QiEy Incentive Plan which were
issued in consideration of such directors’ annwalrt retainer fee.
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For the Three Months Ended For the Six Months Ended
(in millions of U.S. dollars July 2, 201! July 3, 201( July 2, 201! July 3, 201(
Stock options $ — $ 0.5 $ — $ 0.8
PSUs — 0.1 — 0.2
Director share unit 0.7 0.€ 0.7 0.€
Performanc-based RSU 1.C — 1.t —
Time-based RSU 1.C — 1.€ —
Share appreciation righ — — — 0.1
Total $ 2.7 $ 1.2 $ 3.8 $ 1.7

As of July 2, 2011, the unrecognized share-basatpeasation expense and years we expect to recogsiizseure compensation
expense were as follows:

Unrecognized sharebasec Weighted average year

compensation expense as expected to recognize
(in millions of U.S. dollars of July 2, 2011 compensation
Performanc-based RSU $ 4.5 1.5
Time-based RSU 5.5 1.7
Total $ 10.C

Stock option activity for the six months ended J2y011 was as follows:

Weighted averagi

Shares

(in exercise price

thousands (Canadian $)
Balance at January 1, 20 704 $ 16.61
Exercisec (25) 3.5C
Forfeited or expirel (113 39.9¢
Outstanding at July 2, 20: 56€ 12.6(
Exercisable at July 2, 20: 56€ $ 12.6(

During the six months ended July 2, 2011, EISPR),A&rformance-based RSU and Time-based RSU goiveis as follows:

Number of
Performance-basec Number of
(in thousands EISPP Number of PSU: RSUs Time-based RSU
Balance at January 1, 20 18¢ 18¢ 1,72% 1,39
Awarded — — 592 151
Issuec (18¢9) (18¢) — —
Forfeited — — — —
QOutstanding at July 2, 20: — — 2,31¢ 1,54¢

Subsequent to the adoption of the 2010 Equity ItreerPlan, the Human Resources and Compensatiomiitter of the Board of
Directors (“HRCC”) determined that certain of Cetlbng-term incentive plans were no longer needetdt@rminated the Restated Executive
Incentive Share Purchase Plan (the “Restated EIS#R"PSU Plan, and the Amended and Restated Sharedation Rights Plan, effecti
February 23, 2011. The board terminated the Resi#186 Common Share Option Plan, as amended, igffexg of the same date. In
connection with the termination of these plansstantding awards will continue in accordance withtdrms of these plans until vested, paid
out, forfeited or terminated, as applicable. NdHar awards will be granted under these plans.

Average Canadian to U.S. Dollar Exchange Rate fohe Three and Six Months Ended July 2, 2011

The weighted average exercise prices for optiomdoie 3 are disclosed in Canadian dollars. ThestBblow represents the average
Canadian dollar to U.S. dollar exchange rate ferttiiee and six months ended July 2, 2011:

For the Three Months Endec For the Six Months Endec
July 2, 2011 July 2, 2011

Average exchange rate $ 1.03¢ $ 1.02¢
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Note 4 — Income Taxes

Income tax expense was $2.3 million on pretax inre@$37.6 million for the six months ended Jul®@11, as compared to an income
tax expense of $13.2 million on pretax income d.$4million for the six months ended July 3, 20D0ring the quarter, we completed a
reorganization of our legal entity structure anftheced intercompany debt. As a result of thesiwides and lower taxable income in the
United States and Canada, our annual effective Bokate is expected to be lower than our stayutates. Also during the quarter, we made
significant progress in settling intercompany tfangricing issues between Canada and the Unite@Sand expect to receive income tax
refunds approximating $7.0 million within the né&& months.

Note 5 — Net Income Per Common Share

Basic net income per common share is computed\bglidg net income by the weighted average numbeoaimon shares outstanding
during the period. Diluted net income per commoarslis calculated using the weighted average nuofimmon shares outstanding
adjusted to include the effect, if dilutive, of teercise of in-the-money stock options, PSUs,dPerdnce-based RSUs and Time-based
RSUs.

A reconciliation of the denominators of the basid diluted net income per common share computat#oas follows:

For the Three Months Ended For the Six Months Ended
(in thousands July 2, 2011 July 3, 2010 July 2, 201! July 3, 201(
Weighted average number of shares outstandinge bas 94,137 80,42¢ 94,10% 80,40:
Dilutive effect of stock option 19¢ 27C 19t 272
Dilutive effect of PSU: — 18¢ — 18¢
Dilutive effect of Performanc-based RSU 50¢ — 481 —
Dilutive effect of Time-based RSU 687 — 641 —
Adjusted weighted average number of shares outistgrd
diluted 95,52¢ 80,88 95,42¢ 80,86

We excluded 241,000 (July 3, 2010 — 696,650) stgtlons from the computation of diluted net incopee share because the options’
exercise price was greater than the average mprriket of the common shares. Shares purchased mp#remarket and held by independent
trusts are categorized as treasury shares undicagp accounting rules. We excluded 674,397 (3ul010 — 957,104) of treasury shares
held in various trusts in the calculation of baaicl diluted earnings per share.

Note 6 — Segment Reporting

We produce, package and distribute private-lab&<€; 8lear, still and sparkling flavored waters, rggerelated drinks, juice, juice-
based products, bottled water and ready-to-driak te regional and national grocery, mass-mercBaratid wholesale chains and customers
in the dollar convenience and drug channels thrdivghreportable segments — North America (whiatiudes our U.S. reporting unit and
Canada reporting unit), U.K. (which includes ouritgd Kingdom reporting unit and our Continental &ugan reporting unit), Mexico, Royal
Crown International (“RCI”) and All Other.
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Operating Segments

North United
(in millions of U.S. dollars America Kingdom Mexico RCI All Other Total
For the Three Months Ended
July 2, 2011
External revenu? $ 491 $126.( $16z $6E5 $ — $ 640.(
Depreciation and amortizatic 19.¢ 3.3 0.€ — — 23.¢
Operating income (lost 30.C 11.4 (0.6) 2.1 — 42.¢
Additions to property, plant & equipme 6.2 4.€ — — — 10.¢
For the Six Months Ended
July 2, 2011
External revenu? $ 920.1 $212.: $27€ $141 $ — $1,174.:
Depreciation and amortizatic 39.¢ 6.7 1.1 — — 47 .4
Operating income (los 50.¢ 14.4 (2.2) 4.3 — 67.4
Additions to property, plant & equipme 16.4 6.8 — — — 23.c
As of July 2, 2011
Property, plant & equipmel $ 393 $ 947 $13.C $— $ — $ 501.(
Goodwill 126.¢ — — 4.t — 131.2
Intangibles and other ass: 341.( 15.2 0.7 — 0.2 357.1
Total asset? 1,303.: 241.( 36.5 12.1 0.¢ 1,593.¢

! Intersegment revenue between North America andttiher operating segments was $4.0 million and 88ln for the three and six

months ended July 2, 2011, respectiv

2 Excludes intersegment receivables, investmentatebs receivable

Operating Segments

North United
(in millions of U.S. dollars America Kingdom Mexico RCI All Other Total
For the Three Months Ended
July 3, 2010
External revenu? $ 300.6 $101.: $141 $8€ $ — $ 424.7
Depreciation and amortizatic 11.F 2.6 0.5 — — 14.¢
Operating income (lost 30.2 8.7 (2.2 2.4 — 39.1
Additions to property, plant & equipme 7.1 2.C 1.4 — — 10.t
For the Six Months Ended
July 3, 2010
External revenu? $ 564.C $180.¢ $25¢ $16.& $ — $ 787.¢
Depreciation and amortizatic 23.€ 6.2 1.C — — 30.¢
Operating income (los 51.1 11.7 (4.0 5.4 — 64.2
Restructuring (0.5 — — — — (0.5
Additions to property, plant & equipme 12.C 4.4 1.7 — — 18.1
As of January 1, 2011
Property, plant & equipme! $ 4002 $ 90.z $13.z2 $— $ — $ 503.¢
Goodwill 125.7 — — 4.5 — 130.2
Intangibles and other ass: 354.7 15.7 0.7 — — 371.1
Total asset? 1,275.¢ 207.¢ 31k 13.7 0.7 1,529.:

! Intersegment revenue between North America andtther operating segments was $4.9 million and $&0ll&n for the three and six

months ended July 3, 2010, respectiv

2 Excludes intersegment receivables, investmentates receivable

For the six months ended July 2, 2011, sales tonAfdlaccounted for 32.3% (July 3, 2010 — 29.7%wftotal revenues, 36.2% of our
North America operating segment revenues (Jud30— 34.4%), 14.7% of our U.K. operating segment reresn(July 3, 2010 15.9%), an
50.0% of our Mexico operating segment revenuey u2010 — 32.8%).

Credit risk arises from the potential default afisstomer in meeting its financial obligations to @sncentrations of credit exposure r
arise with a group of customers that have simitc@mnemic characteristics or that are located irstree geographic region. The ability of si



customers to meet obligations would be similarfeed by changing economic, political or otherditions. We are not currently
aware of any facts that would create a materialitresk.
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Revenues are attributed to operating segment lmas#te location of the plant. Revenues by operagegment were as follows:

For the Three Months Ended For the Six Months Ended

(in millions of U.S. dollars July 2, 2011 July 3, 201C July 2, 2011 July 3, 201(
United States $ 433¢ $ 255¢ $ 822: $ 4921
Canade 717 62.C 123.¢ 102.1
United Kingdom 126.( 101.Z 212 180.¢
Mexico 16.2 14.1 27.¢ 25.¢
RCI 6.5 8.€ 14.1 16.¢
Elimination? (14.0) (16.7) (26.0) (30.2)

$  640.C $ 4247 $ 1,174 $ 787

Represents intersegment revenue among our repamitgy of which $4.0 million and $8.2 million regzent intersegment revenue
between North America and our other operating segsrfer the three and six months ended July 2, 2@kbectively, and $4.9 million
and $10.8 million represent intersegment reventsd®n North America and our other operating segenfemtthe three and six months
ended July 3, 2010, respective

The revenue by product table for the three andnsirths ended July 3, 2010 has been reclassifisdarately present the category
“Juice” which is now a significant portion of owewenue due to the Cliffstar Acquisition.

Revenues by product were as follows:

For the Three Months Ended July 2, 2011

(in millions of U.S. dollars North America United Kingdom Mexico RCI Total
Revenu

Carbonated soft drink $ 200.7 $ 53.¢ $12.c $— $ 266.¢
Juice 152.2 4.2 0.9 — 157.¢
Concentrat 2.C 1.€ — 6.t 10.1
All other products 136.4 66.4 3.0 — 205.¢
Total $ 491.: $ 126.( $16.2 $ 6.5 $ 640.(

For the Six Months Ended July 2, 2011

(in millions of U.S. dollars North America United Kingdom Mexico RCI Total
Revenu

Carbonated soft drink $ 357.C $ 86.¢ $21.¢ $— $ 465.F
Juice 312.2 6.2 1.7 — 320.1
Concentrat 4.3 1.8 — 14.1 20.2
All other products 246.€ 117.¢ 4.3 — 368.:
Total $ 920.1 $ 212.% $27.¢€ $14.1 $1,174..

11



Table of Contents

(in millions of U.S. dollars
Revenu

Carbonated soft drink
Juice

Concentrate

All other products

Total

(in millions of U.S. dollars
Revenus

Carbonated soft drink
Juice

Concentratt

All other products
Total

Property, plant and equipment by geographic arae a follows:

(in millions of U.S. dollars

United State!
Canade
United Kingdom

Mexico

Note 7 — Inventories

(in millions of U.S. dollars

Raw materials
Finished good

Other

12

For the Three Months Ended July 3, 2010

North America United Kingdom Mexico RCI Total
$ 183.% $ 39.C $12.1 $— $234.¢
2.5 3.6 0.2 — 6.€
1.9 1.2 — 8.€ 11.€
112 57.C 1.8 — 171.5
$ 300.¢ $ 101.2 $14.1 $ 8.€ $424.

For the Six Months Ended July 3, 2010

North America United Kingdom Mexico RCI Total
$ 350.4 $ 72.5 $22.5 $— $445.¢
2.5 5.3 0.t — 8.3
3.8 2.€ — 16.¢ 23.Z
207.2 100.t 2.€ — 310.€
$ 564.( $ 180.¢ $25.¢ $16.€ $787.¢

July 2, 201!

$ 342¢
50.4
94.7
13.C
$ 501.C

July 2, 201!

$ 104.
117.¢
19.¢

$ 242

January 1, 201!

$ 350.2
50.C
90.z
13.2
$ 503.¢

January 1, 201!

$ 90.1
107.:

18.1

$ 215.¢
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Note 8 — Intangibles and Other Assets including Gatwill

July 2, 2011
Accumulated
(in millions of U.S. dollars Cost Amortization Net
Intangibles
Not subject to amortizatic
Rights $ 45.4 $ — $ 45.4
Subject to amortizatio
Customer relationshif $370.1 $ 107« $262.7
Trademark 27.¢ 20.€ 7.C
Information technolog 62.€ 54.7 7.8
Other 11.5 4.4 7.1
471.¢ 187.1 284.%
517.2 187.1 330.1
Other Assets
Financing cost $ 23.2 $ 5.2 $ 17.¢
Deposits 7.€ — 7.€
Other 1.€ 0.1 15
32.4 5.4 27.C

Total Intangibles & Other
Assets $549.¢ $ 192t $357.1

Amortization expense of intangible and other assets $8.9 million and $17.8 million for the threedasix months ended July 2, 2011,
respectively, and $4.6 million and $9.9 million foe three and six months ended July 3, 2010, ctispdy.

The estimated amortization expense for intangibles the next five years is:

(in millions of U.S. dollars

Remainder of 201 $ 15.F
2012 30.2
2013 28.¢
2014 27.F
2015 25.2
Thereafter 157.c

$284.7

Goodwill is not subject to amortization and theradpain goodwill reflects fluctuations in foreignroency exchange rates.

13
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Note 9 — Debt
Our total debt was as follows:

(in millions of U.S. dollars July 2, 2017 January 1, 201:
8.375% senior notes due in 2017 $ 215.( $ 215.(
8.125% senior notes due in 2C 375.( 375.(
ABL facility 20.1 7.6
GE obligation 14.F 16.t
Other capital lease 5.C 5.8
Other deb 1.7 2.C
Total debt 631.: 622.2
Less: Sho-term borrowings and current de
ABL facility 20.1 7.6
Total short-term borrowings 20.1 7.¢
GE obligation- current maturitie: 4.3 4.1
Other capital lease- current maturitie: 0.¢ 14
Other deb- current maturitie: 0.2 0.t
Total current debt 25.t 13.¢
Long-term debt before discou 605.¢ 608.:
Less discount on 8.375% no! (2.€) (2.9
Total long-term debt $ 603.2 $ 605.£

! Our 8.375% senior notes were issued at a discdunéd25% on November 13, 20C

Debt
Asset Based Lending Facili

On March 31, 2008, we entered into a credit agre¢méh JPMorgan Chase Bank N.A. as Agent thattedkan asset-based lending
credit facility (the “ABL facility”) to provide financing for our North America, Unit&éhgdom and Mexico operating segments. In conne
with the Cliffstar Acquisition, we refinanced théBA facility on August 17, 2010 to, among other tigén provide for the Cliffstar Acquisition,
the issuance of $375.0 million of 8.125% senioeadhat are due on September 1, 2018 (the “2018sNa@nd the application of net proce
therefrom, the underwritten public offering of 1803000 common shares at a price of $5.67 per simat¢he application of net proceeds
therefrom and to increase the amount availabl®édorowings to $275.0 million. We drew down a pantiaf the indebtedness under the ABL
facility in order to fund the Cliffstar AcquisitioWe incurred $5.4 million of financing fees in eattion with the refinancing of the ABL
facility. The financing fees are being amortizethgshe straight-line method over a four-year perio

As of July 2, 2011, we had $20.1 million in borrog$ under the ABL facility outstanding. The commeétmhfee was 0.5% per annum of
the unused commitment, which was $245.4 millioofaduly 2, 2011.

8.125% Senior Notes due in 2018

On August 17, 2010, we issued the 2018 Notes. 3heer of the 2018 Notes is our wholiwned subsidiary Cott Beverages Inc., but
and most of our U.S., Canadian and United Kingdobsiliaries guarantee the 2018 Notes. The intereiie 2018 Notes is payable semi-
annually on March # and Septembett 1 of each year.

We incurred $8.6 million of financing fees in contien with the 2018 Notes. The financing fees amd amortized using the straight-
line method over an eight-year period, which repnés the duration of the 2018 Notes. The amortimagixpense calculated under the straight-
line method does not differ materially from theeetive-interest method.

14



Table of Contents

8.375% Senior Notes due in 2017

On November 13, 2009, we issued $215.0 millionevfiar notes that are due on November 15, 2017207 Notes”).The 2017 Note
were issued at a $3.1 million discount. The issdi¢he 2017 Notes is Cott Beverages Inc., but weranst of our U.S., Canadian and United
Kingdom subsidiaries guarantee the 2017 Notes.iftkeest on the 2017 Notes is payable semi-annoallylay 15" and November 5 of
each year.

We incurred $5.1 million of financing fees in costien with the 2017 Notes. The financing fees am@ amortized using the straight-
line method over an eight-year period, which repn¢s the duration of the 2017 Notes. The amortimatixpense calculated under the straight-
line method does not differ materially from theeetive-interest method.

8% Senior Subordinated Notes due in 2011

We repurchased the remaining outstanding 8% senlwordinated notes due December 15, 2011 (the “R@tds”)for $11.1 million or
February 1, 2010, and recorded a loss on buyba$R.dfmillion. The 2011 Notes acquired by us haserbretired, and we have discontinued
the payment of interest.

Note 10 — Commitments and Contingencies

We are subject to various claims and legal procegdiith respect to matters such as governmergalations, and other actions aris
out of the normal course of business. Managemdigves that the resolution of these matters witlimave a material adverse effect on our
financial position, results of operations, or céletv.

We are currently involved in legal matters relaiegarious contract disputes. The Company inteadsgorously defend against all
claims in these lawsuits; however, we are presemtable to predict the ultimate outcome of thes®as. As of July 2, 2011, our accrued
liability for litigation contingencies with a probke likelihood of loss was $1.0 million, with anpected range of loss from $0.5 million to
$1.4 million.

In addition, we are involved in legal matters whire likelihood of loss has been judged to be nealsly possible, but for which a ran
of the potential loss cannot be reasonably estithate

We had $9.5 million in standby letters of creditstanding as of July 2, 2011 (July 3, 2010 — $7il6an).

Note 11 — Shares Held in Trust treated as Treasurghares

In May 2008, an independent trustee acting undeaiceof our benefit plans purchased 2.3 millioroaf common shares to be used to
satisfy future liabilities under the Amended angfeed PSU Plan (the “PSU Plan”) and the Restat8BEE During the six months ended
July 2, 2011, we distributed 0.2 million sharesrrthe trust to satisfy certain PSU obligations thed vested. During the six months ended
July 2, 2011, we distributed 0.2 million sharesirthe trust to satisfy certain Restated EISPP abtigs that had vested. As of July 2, 2011,
0.7 million shares were held in trust, and accodifide as treasury shares under applicable accaynties. Treasury shares are reported at
cost.

Subsequent to the adoption of the 2010 Equity ItieerPlan on May 4, 2010, the HRCC determined teatain of Cott’s long-term
incentive plans were no longer needed and termirthee PSU Plan and the Restated EISPP effectiveil&gbh23, 2011. No further awards
will be granted under such plans, as future awawitide made under the Company’s 2010 Equity InsenPlan.

Note 12 — Hedging Transactions and Derivative Finasial Instruments

We are directly and indirectly affected by chanigeforeign currency market conditions. These changanarket conditions may
adversely impact our financial performance andreferred to as market risks. When deemed apprefdnamanagement, we use derivatives
as a risk management tool to mitigate the potemtiphct of foreign currency market risks. Our fgrecurrency market risks are managed
through the use of derivative instruments.

We purchase forward contract derivative instrumertsward contracts are agreements to buy or spibatity of a currency at a
predetermined future date, and at a predetermattedor price. We do not enter into derivative ficiahinstruments for trading purposes.
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All derivatives are carried at fair value in therSolidated Balance Sheets in the line item accquapable and accrued liabilities. The
carrying values of the derivatives reflect the ictpaf legally enforceable agreements with the samumterparties. These allow us to net s
positive and negative positions (assets and ltas)i arising from different transactions with $@me counterparty.

The accounting for gains and losses that resutt thanges in the fair values of derivative instroteelepends on whether the
derivatives have been designated and qualify agihgdnstruments and the type of hedging relatiggshrhe changes in fair values of
derivatives that have been designated and quaifiaah flow hedges are recorded in accumulated otimeprehensive income (loss)
(“AOCI") and are reclassified into the line itemtime Consolidated Statements of Operations in wtiiethedged items are recorded in the
same period the hedged items affect earnings. ®tleethigh degree of effectiveness between theihgdigstruments and the underlying
exposures being hedged, fluctuations in the valukeoderivative instruments are generally offsetbhanges in the fair values or cash flows
of the underlying exposures being hedged.

We formally designate and document, at inceptioa financial instrument as a hedge of a specifaedging exposure, the risk
management objective and the strategy for undegetkie hedge transaction. In addition, we formatigess both at the inception and at least
quarterly thereafter, whether the financial instemts used in hedging transactions are effectioéfsgtting changes in either the fair value
cash flows of the related underlying exposures. #e§fective portion of a financial instrument’sarige in fair value is immediately
recognized into earnings.

We estimate the fair values of its derivatives Ham® quoted market prices or pricing models usingent market rates (refer to
Note 13). The notional amounts of the derivativeaficial instruments do not necessarily represenuats exchanged by the parties ¢
therefore, are not a direct measure of our expasuifee financial risks described above. The anm®arthanged are calculated by referen
the notional amounts and by other terms of thevdévies, such as interest rates, foreign curremch@nge rates or other financial indices.
do not view the fair values of its derivatives solation, but rather in relation to the fair val@wesash flows of the underlying hedged
transactions. All of our derivatives are straightfard over-the-counter instruments with liquid metsk

Credit Risk Associated with Derivatives

We have established strict counterparty creditgjirids and enter into transactions only with finahinstitutions of investment grade
better. We mitigate pre-settlement risk by beingypted to net settle for transactions with the sarounterparty.

Cash Flow Hedging Strategy

We use cash flow hedges to minimize the variabititgash flows of assets or liabilities or foreeastransactions caused by fluctuations
in foreign currency exchange rates. The chang#wifair values of derivatives designated as clast liedges are recorded in AOCI and are
reclassified into the line item in the Consolidagtdtements of Operations in which the hedged i@msecorded in the same period the
hedged items affect earnings. The changes in #ireg of hedges that are determined to be ineffeatie immediately reclassified from
AOCI into earnings. We did not discontinue any ciev hedging relationships during the six monthged July 2, 2011. The maximum
length of time over which we hedge our exposuritiore cash flows is typically one year.

We maintain a foreign currency cash flow hedginggpam to reduce the risk that our procurement aietsvwill be adversely affected
by changes in foreign currency exchange rates. M eto forward contracts to hedge certain pogiof forecasted cash flows denominated
in foreign currencies. When the U.S. dollar streegs significantly against foreign currencies,dkeline in the present value of future
foreign currency cash flows is partially offsetdpgins in the fair value of the derivative instrurtseiConversely, when the U.S. dollar weal
as compared to other currencies, the increaseipréssent value of future foreign currency caswslés partially offset by losses in the fair
value of the derivative instruments. The total ol value of derivatives that have been designaeldqualify for our foreign currency cash
flow hedging program as of July 2, 2011 was appnately $9.6 million.
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The following table summarizes our derivative iostents as of July 2, 2011:

(in millions of U.S. dollars Liability Derivatives
Derivatives designated as cash flow hedging instruents Balance Sheet location Fair Value

Accounts payable and accrue
Foreign exchange contrac liabilities $ 0€

The settlement of our derivative instruments reslib a charge to cost of sales of $0.4 million &d million for the three and six
months ended July 2, 2011.

Note 13 — Fair Value Measurements

ASC No. 820 defines fair value as the exchangeephat would be received for an asset or paidatasfier a liability (an exit price) in
the principal or most advantageous market for gseor liability in an orderly transaction betwaearket participants at the measurement
date. Additionally, the inputs used to measureviaiue are prioritized based on a three-level hidgna This hierarchy requires entities to
maximize the use of observable inputs and minirtfirzeuse of unobservable inputs.

The three levels of inputs used to measure faurevate as follows:

» Level 1- Quoted prices in active markets for identical assetiabilities.

» Level 2 — Observable inputs other than quoted prilceluded in Level 1, such as quoted prices fimilar assets and liabilities in
active markets; quoted prices for identical or Emassets and liabilities in markets that areawtive; or other inputs that are
observable or can be corroborated by observablkendata

» Level 3 — Unobservable inputs that are supportelitthy or no market activity and that are signéfit to the fair value of the assets
or liabilities. This includes certain pricing moggtliscounted cash flow methodologies and simdahniques that use significant
unobservable input:

We have certain assets and liabilities that areired to be recorded at fair value on a recurriagi®in accordance with U.S. GAAP.

The following table summarizes those assets abditias measured at fair value on a recurring $asi of July 2, 2011:

July 2, 2011
(in millions of U.S. dollars Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Netting Adjustment Fair Value Measurement
Liabilities
Derivatives $— $ 0.€ $— $ — $ 0.€
Contingent Consideratic — — 33.2 — 33.2
Total Liabilities $— $ 0.€ $33.2 $ — $ 33.¢

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The carrying amounts reflected in the Consolid&athnce Sheets for cash, receivables, payables;teim borrowings and long-term
debt approximate their respective fair values, pkas otherwise indicated. The carrying valuesesiunated fair values of our significant
outstanding debt as of July 2, 2011 and Janua2@11 are as follows:

July 2, 2011 January 1, 2011
Carrying Carrying
Fair Fair
(in millions of U.S. dollars Value Value Value Value
8.375% senior notes due in 2017 $215.C $226.: $215.( $232.%
8.125% senior notes due in 2Ct 375.( 397.t 375.( 404.1
ABL facility 20.1 20.1 7.9 7.9
Total $610.] $643.¢ $597.¢ $644.5

! The fair values are based on the trading levelsbéidffer prices observed by a market particip
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Fair value of contingent consideration

The fair value of the contingent consideration [dgydn the Cliffstar Acquisition was based on sfgaint inputs not observed in the
market and thus represented a Level 3 instrumavelL3 instruments are valued based on unobserirghlés that are supported by little or
no market activity and reflect our own assumptionseasuring fair value.

(in millions of U.S. dollars

Balance at January 1, 20 $32.2
Accretion to fair value 1.C
Ending balance at July 2, 20 $33.2

We were notified on May 9, 2011 by the seller aff€ar of certain objections to the performanceaswees used to calculate the
contingent consideration, and the seller assertddim for amounts in excess of the amounts accagetbntingent consideration at July 2,
2011. For certain of the objections, Cott assectrthterclaims against the seller, the settlementhd¢h will be under binding arbitration
processes according to the terms of the asset@edgreement. We believe the fair value of thérgent consideration has been properly
recorded in accordance with the asset purchaseragrdg and we have not adjusted our estimated daievior the objections raised by the
seller nor for our counterclaims. The final resmlntof these matters may result in amounts payiahiiee seller that may materially vary from
our current estimated fair value. Changes in tivevidue of contingent consideration will be receddn our Consolidated Statement of
Operations. On July 29, 2011, Cott made an intpayment of $21.0 million to the seller, represemth25.7 million for undisputed amounts
of the contingent consideration, net of a $4.7iolrefund due to Cott as a result of the finakd®iination of working capital. Any additional
payment to the seller as determined by the arbitraty result in interest payable at a rate of Ja¥annum per the terms of the asset
purchase agreement.

Note 14 — Guarantor Subsidiaries

The 2017 Notes and 2018 Notes issued by our whellyed subsidiary, Cott Beverages, Inc., are un¢amdilly guaranteed on a senior
basis pursuant to guarantees by Cott Corporatidrcartain other wholly owned subsidiaries (the “@usor Subsidiaries”). Such guarantees
are full, unconditional and joint and several.

We have not presented separate financial staterapdtseparate disclosures have not been providextoung subsidiary guarantors
because management has determined such inform&tim material to the holders of the above-memtibnotes.

The following supplemental financial informatiortséorth on an unconsolidated basis, our Balanee8h Statements of Operations
and Cash Flows for Cott Corporation, Cott Beverdges Guarantor Subsidiaries and our other suasas (the “Non-guarantor
Subsidiaries”) The supplemental financial information reflects owestments and those of Cott Beverages Inc.dir thspective subsidiari
using the equity method of accounting.
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Condensed Consolidating Statements of Operations

(in millions of U.S. dollars)
Unaudited

Revenue, ne
Cost of sales

Gross profit
Selling, general and administrative expenses

Operating income

Other (income) expense, r
Intercompany interest (income) expense,
Interest expense, net

Income (loss) before income tax (benefi
expense and equity income (loss)

Income tax (benefit) expen
Equity income (loss)

Net income (loss

Less: Net income attributable to non-controlling
interests

Net income (loss) attributed to Cott Corporatior

For the Three Months Ended July 2, 2011

Cott
Beverage Non- Elimination
Cott Guarantor Guarantor
Corporation Inc. Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Entries Consolidatec
$ 60.t $ 254.: $ 288. $ 47: $ (10.9) $ 640.(
47.€ 222.¢ 250.( 42.5 (10.9) 552.(
13.2 31.t 38.: 5.C — 88.C
9.€ 21.¢ 10.2 3.3 — 45.1
3.€ 9.€ 28.C 1.7 — 42.C
0.9 0.2 0.1 (0.2) — —
(1.9 0.2 1.6 — — —
0.2 13.¢ 0.€ — — 14.€
5.5 (4.7) 25.7 1.8 — 28.2
— (0.2) 0.7 0.1 — 0.7
21.C 0. (3.4) — (18.5) —
$ 2658 $ 37 $ 21€ $ 17 $ (185 $  27¢
— — — 1.1 — 1.1
$ 265 $ 37 $ 216 $ 0€ $ (185 $  26F
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Consolidating Statements of Operations

(in millions of U.S. dollars)
Unaudited

Revenue, ne
Cost of sales

Gross profit
Selling, general and administrative exper
Gain on disposal of property, plant & equipmen

Operating income

Other expense, n
Intercompany interest (income) expense,
Interest expense, net

Income before income tax expense and equi
income (loss)

Income tax expens
Equity income (loss)

Net income (loss

Less: Net income attributable to non-controlling
interests

Net income (loss) attributed to Cott Corporatior

For the Three Months Ended July 3, 2010

Cott
Beverage Non- Elimination
Cott Guarantor Guarantor
Corporation Inc. Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Entries Consolidatec
$ 620 $2361 $ 101z $ 37 $ (120 $ 4247
45.¢ 200.: 84.7 32.t (12.9) 351.2
16.2 35.¢ 16.5 5.C — 73.t
9.8 12.¢ 7.9 3. — 34.t
— (0.1 — — — (0.1
6.4 23.C 8.€ 1.1 — 39.1
0.2 — 0.2 0.1 — 0.t
(1.6) 3.2 (1.€) — — —
0.1 5.9 0.1 — — 6.1
7.7 13.€ 9.9 1.C — 32.t
3.1 4.2 1.4 0.1 — 8.8
17.7 1.7 11.€ — (31.0) —
$ 22: $ 114 $ 201 $ 0 $ (3.0 $ 237
— — — 1.4 — 1.4
$ 22: $ 114 $ 201 $ (05 $ (BLO $ 22.:
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Condensed Consolidating Statements of Operations

(in millions of U.S. dollars)
Unaudited

Revenue, ne
Cost of sales

Gross profit
Selling, general and administrative expenses

Operating income

Other expense (income), r
Intercompany interest (income) expense,
Interest expense, net

Income (loss) before income tax expense (benefi)ch
equity income (loss)

Income tax expense (benel
Equity income (loss)

Net income (loss
Less: Net income attributable to non-controllintenests

Net income (loss) attributed to Cott Corporation

For the Six Months Ended July 2, 2011

Cott
Beverage Non- Elimination
Cott Guarantor Guarantor
Corporation Inc. Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Entries Consolidatec
$ 1027 $469: $ 540¢ $ 804 $ (192 $ 1,174
82.F 408.¢ 473. 71.C (19.2) 1,016.
20.z 60.5 67.t 9.4 — 157.¢
17.¢ 40.5 25.1 6.8 — 90.z
2.4 20.C 42.4 2.€ — 67.4
0.1 0.7 0.1 (0.2) — 0.8
(3.5) 0.2 3.2 — — —
0.2 27.€ 1.1 0.1 — 29.C
5.€ (8.5) 37.¢ 2.6 — 37.€
1.1 1.2 (0.2) 0.2 — 2.3
28.€ 2.2 (7.2) — (23.6) —
$ 33 $ (75 $ 30¢ $ 24 $ (238 $ 35:
— — — 2.C — 2.C
$ 33 $ (75 $ 30 $ 0.4 $ (238 % 33.5
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Consolidating Statements of Operations

(in millions of U.S. dollars)
Unaudited

Revenue, ne
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Selling, general and administrative exper
Loss on disposal of property, plant & equipm
Restructuring

Operating income

Other expense (income), r
Intercompany interest (income) expense,
Interest expense, net

Income before income tax expense and equity incon
(loss)

Income tax expens
Equity income (loss)

Net income (loss
Less: Net income attributable to non-controllintenests

Net income (loss) attributed to Cott Corporation

For the Six Months Ended July 3, 2010

Cott
Beverage Non- Elimination

Cott Guarantor Guarantor
Corporation Inc. Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Entries Consolidatec
$ 1021 $454: $ 181€ $ 71 $ (219 $ 787.¢
79.€ 381.¢ 155.( 61.€ (21.9) 656.¢
22.: 72.4 26.€ 9.4 — 130.7
17.¢ 27.1 14.¢ 7.2 — 66.¢
— 0.1 — — — 0.1
— (0.5 — — — (0.5
4.7 457 11.7 2.1 — 64.2
1.9 0.1 0.4 (0.2) — 2.2
(3.9 6.4 (3.1 — — —
0.2 11.¢ 0.2 0.1 — 12.%
5.9 27.4 14.2 2.1 — 49.¢
2.1 .3 1.t 0.2 — 13.2
30.C 3.2 21.4 — (54.6) —
$ 33¢& $ 217 $ 341 $ 18 $ (546 $ 36«
— — — 2.€ — 2.€
$ 33€& $ 217 $ 341 $ (08 $ (546 $  33¢

22



Table of Contents

Consolidating Balance Sheets

(in millions of U.S. dollars)
Unaudited

ASSETS

Current asset:

Cash & cash equivalen

Accounts receivable, net of allowar
Income taxes recoverak

Inventories

Prepaid expenses and other assets

Total current assets

Property, plant & equipmel
Goodwill

Intangibles and other ass:
Deferred income taxe
Other tax receivabl

Due from affiliates
Investments in subsidiaries

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Current liabilities

Shor-term borrowings

Current maturities of lor-term debr
Contingent consideration ei-out
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities

Total current liabilities

Long-term deb

Deferred income taxe
Other lon¢-term liabilities
Due to affiliates

Total liabilities

Equity

Capital stock, no pe

Treasury stocl

Additional paic-in-capital

Retained earnings (defic

Accumulated other comprehensive (loss) income
Total Cott Corporation equit

Non-controlling interests

Total equity

Total liabilities and equity

As of July 2, 2011

Cott Non-

Cott Beverages Guarantor Guarantor Elimination
Corporatiot Inc. Subsidiarie Subsidiarie Entries Consolidate
$ 87 $ 15 3 84 $ 54 $ — $ 24cC
30.7 107.2 178.¢ 21.: (50.5) 287.2
— 11.5 0.6 0.5 — 12.¢
22.2 78.4 133.: 8.3 — 242
3.1 20.1 9.2 0.1 — 32.5
64.7 218.¢ 330.¢ 35.€ (50.5) 599.(
50.¢ 180.t 256.( 13.€ — 501.C
28.€ 4.5 98.2 — — 131.:
1.3 110.: 224.¢ 20.7 — 357.1
2.7 — — — — 2.7
2.5 — 0.2 — — 2.7
243.1 172.¢ 224. 41.€ (682.9 —
250.k 366.5 560.S 193.( (1,370.9) —
$ 644.¢ $1053.C $1,694.0 $ 304.6 $(2,103.) $ 1,593.¢
$ — $ 201 $ — $ — $ — $ 201
0.1 4.8 0.1 04 — 54
— 33.2 — — — 33.2
30.t 101.1 183.t 17.1 (50.5) 281.7
30.€ 159.2 183.¢ 17.5 (50.5) 340.
0.2 599.4 1.2 2.3 — 603.2
— 32.€ 10.€ 0.8 — 44.t
0.3 3.7 17.C — — 21.C
43.2 223.] 382.5 33.4 (682.9) —
74.% 1,018.¢ 595.¢ 54.C (732.9 1,009.:
395.7 380.1 1,322.; 175.C (1,877.9) 395.7
(2.2 — — — — (2.1)
43.F — — — — 43.F
139.¢ (355.9) (326.5) (38.7) 721.1 139.¢
(6.9 10.E 103.: 100.4 (214.2) (6.9
570.¢ 34.7 1,098.¢ 236.7 (1,370.9) 570.¢
— — — 14.1 — 14.1
570.€ 34.7 1,098.¢ 250.¢ (1,370.9) 584.7
$ 644.¢ $1,053.( $1,694.0 $ 304.6 $(2,103.) $ 1,593.¢
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Consolidating Balance Sheets

(in millions of U.S. dollars)

ASSETS

Current assets

Cash & cash equivalen

Accounts receivable, net of allowar
Income taxes recoverak

Inventories

Prepaid expenses and other as

Total current assets

Property, plant & equipmel
Goodwill

Intangibles and other ass:
Deferred income taxe
Other tax receivabl

Due from affiliates
Investments in subsidiari

Total asset

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Current liabilities

Shor-term borrowings

Current maturities of lor-term debr
Contingent consideration ei-out
Accounts payable and accrued liabilit

Total current liabilities

Long-term debt

Deferred income taxe
Other lon¢-term liabilities
Due to affiliates

Total liabilities

Equity

Capital stock, no pe

Treasury stocl

Additional paic-in-capital

Retained earnings (defic

Accumulated other comprehensive (loss) ince
Total Cott Corporation equit

Non-controlling interest:

Total equity

Total liabilities and equity

As of January 1, 2011

Cott Non-

Cott Beverages Guarantor Guarantor Elimination
Corporatiot Inc. Subsidiarie Subsidiarie Entries Consolidate
$ 7.8 % 91 $ 260 $ 53 $% — $ 48z
108.¢ 151.€ 128.€ 17.2 (192.9 213.¢
— 1.2 (1.9 0.2 — 0.2
18.1 66.1 124.¢ 6.7 — 215.t
3.€ 19.5 8.1 1.7 — 32.7
138.1 247 .4 286.( 31.2 (192.5 510.c
50.C 180.4 259.t 13.€ — 503.¢
27.4 4.5 98.: — — 130.2
1.3 114.¢ 233.¢ 21.4 — 371.1
3.7 — — (1.2) — 2.E
2.5 7.€ 1.2 — — 11.:
241.¢ 166.¢ 220.¢ 41.€ (671.5) —
198.4 351.t 322.7 161.( (1,033.9) —
$ 6632 $1,073.0 $1,422. $ 268.0 $(1,897.) $ 1,529.
$ — $ 7¢ $ — $ — $ — $ 7.¢
0.1 54 0.1 04 — 6.C
— 32.2 — — — 32.2
97.% 171.¢ 185.¢ 14.1 (192.5) 276.¢
97.4 217.% 186.( 14.5 (192.5) 322.7
— 601.¢ 1.4 2.5 (0.9 605.E
— 31.€ 10.7 1.1 — 43.€
— 5.4 16.¢ — (0.2) 22.:
43.2 219.¢ 377.2 31.7 (671.7) —
140.€ 1,076.( 592.2 49.¢ (864.6) 994.(
395.¢ 354.¢ 1,182.¢ 175.C (1,712.0 395.¢
(3.2 — — — — (3.2)
40.7 0.4 — — 0.3 40.¢
106.2 (350.9) (352.0) (36.4) 738.¢ 106.5
(16.9) (7.9 (0.€) 66.C (59.6) (17.5)
522.¢ (2.9 830.( 205.F  (1,033.0 522.:
— — — 13.C — 13.C
522.¢ (2.9 830.( 2185  (1,033.0 535.
$ 6632 $1,073.0 $1,422. $ 268.0 $(1,897.) $ 1,529.
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Consolidating Statements of Condensed Cash Flows

(in millions of U.S. dollars)
Unaudited

Operating activities
Net income (loss
Depreciation & amortizatio
Amortization of financing fee
Shar-based compensation expel
Increase in deferred income ta;
Equity income (loss), net of distributio
Intercompany transactiol
Other nor-cash item:
Net change in operating assets and liabill
Net cash provided by (used in) operating

activities

Investing activities

Additions to property, plant & equipme

Additions to intangible & other asse

Other investing activitie

Advances to affiliate

Net cash (used in) provided by investing
activities

Financing activities

Payments of lor-term debi

Borrowings under ABL

Payments under AB

Advances from affiliate

Distributions to no-controlling interest:

Net cash (used in) provided by financing
activities

Effect of exchange rate changes on ¢

Net increase (decrease) in cash & ca:
equivalents

Cash & cash equivalents, beginning ¢
period

Cash & cash equivalents, end of period

For the Three Months Ended July 2, 2011

Cott
Beverage Non- Elimination

Cott Guarantor Guarantor
Corporation Inc. Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Entries Consolidatec
$ 265 $ 37 $ 21€ $ 17 $ (185 $ 27«
14 8.7 12.2 1.5 — 23.¢
0.1 0.7 0.1 — — 0.€
0.6 1.5 0.4 — — 2.8
0.€ 0.1 0.2 — — 1.C
21.C 0.9 (3.4) — (18.5) —
2.3 1.1 — — (3.4) —
(0.9) 1.9 - - - 1.5
(26.7) 22.% (66.1) (6.2) 40. (36.9)
25.7 33.t (34.9) (3.0 — 21.5
(1.5 (6.2) (3.1) — — (10.9)
1.4 (2.6) (0.1) (1.2) — (2.
— (1.9 — — — (1.8)
(19.6) — 6.C 4.1 9.7 —
(19.9) (10.6) 2.8 2.8 9.7 (15.1)
— (2.0) — (0.2) — (2.1)
_ 43.€ — — — 43.€
— (58.7) — — — (58.7)
(4.1) (6.0) 19.€ — 9.7) —
— — — (0.9) — (0.€)
(4.1) (23.1) 19.€ (1.0 (9.7) (18.1)
— — 0.1 — — 0.1
1.7 (0.2) (12.2) (1.2) — (11.6)
7.C 1.7 20.€ 6.E — 35.¢
$ 87 $ 15 $ 84 $ 54 $ — $  24(
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Consolidating Statements of Condensed Cash Flows

(in millions of U.S. dollars)
Unaudited

For the Three Months Ended July 3, 2010

Cott

Beverage Non- Elimination
Cott Guarantor Guarantor
Corporation Inc. Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Entries Consolidatec
Operating activities
Net income (loss $ 22: $ 11.4 $ 201 $ 0.¢ $ (310 $ 231
Depreciation and amortizatic 1.€ 8.6 3.2 1.5 — 14.¢
Amortization of financing fee 0.1 0.4 — — — 0.t
Shar-based compensation expel 0.€ 0.6 — — — 2
Equity (loss) income, net of distributio 7.7 .7 (11.€) — 31.C
Intercompany transactiol 2.C 0.8 — — (2.9 —
Lease contract termination payme — (0.9 — — — (0.€
Other nor-cash item: 0.1 0.8 0.2 — — 11
Net change in operating assets and liabil (8.9) 1.6 (7.€) 2.8 2.8 (9.9)
Net cash provided by operating activit 0.2 21.€ o5 5.2 — 31.2
Investing activities
Additions to property, plant & equipme 1.3 (5.8 (2.0 (1.9 — (10.5
Additions to intangible & other asse — (2.3 — — — (2.3
Proceeds from sale of property, plant &
equipmen: — 0.2 0.1 — — 0.2
Advances to affiliate 19.¢ — (2.9 1.E (18.4) —
Net cash provided by (used in) investing
activities 18.5 (7.9 (4.9 0.1 (18.9) (12.5)
Financing activities
Payments of lor-term deb! — (2.8) — (0.2) — (2.9
Borrowings under ABL — 47.€ 35.¢ — — 83.2
Payments under AB — (62.¢) (38.0 — — (100.9)
Advances from affiliate (1.5 3.0 (19.9 — 18.¢ —
Intercompany contributior (18.7) — 18.7 — — —
Distributions to no-controlling interest: — — — (0.9 — (0.9
Net cash (used in) provided by financing
activities (20.2) (15.0 (3.9 0.9 18.¢ (21.))
Effect of exchange rate changes on ¢ (0.6) — 0.1 (0.7) — (0.6)
Net (decrease) increase in cash & ca:
equivalents (2.1 (1.3 (3.9 4.3 — (2.9
Cash & cash equivalents, beginning of perio 11.¢ 2.9 6.5 2.C — 23.2
Cash & cash equivalents, end of perio $ 9.7 $ 16 $ 2.7 $ 6.3 $ — $ 20.c
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Consolidating Statements of Condensed Cash Flows

(in millions of U.S. dollars)
Unaudited

For the Six Months Ended July 2, 2011

Cott

Beverage Non- Elimination
Cott Guarantor Guarantor
Corporation Inc. Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Entries Consolidatec
Operating activities

Net income (loss $ 33: $ (7. $ 30.¢ $ 24 $ (238 $ 35:&
Depreciation & amortizatio 3.C 17.2 24.1 3.C — 47.¢
Amortization of financing fee 0.2 1.5 0.1 — — 1.8
Shar-based compensation expel ilC 2.2 0.€ — — 3.8
Increase (decrease) in deferred income t 0.¢ 1.2 (0.2 — — 1.¢
Equity (loss) income, net of distributio (28.9) (2.2 7.2 — 23.¢ —
Intercompany transactiol 6.8 2.7 — — (9.€) —
Other nor-cash item: — 1.8 — — — 1.8
Net change in operating assets and liabil (16.9 (21.5) (67.5) 0.3 9.€ (96.9)
Net cash (used in) provided by operating

activities (0.4 (4.5) (5.7) 5.7 — (4.3
Investing activities
Additions to property, plant & equipme (2.2 (14.2) (6.9 — — (23.9)
Additions to intangible & other asse 1.4 (2.6) (0.7 (1.2 — (2.5
Other investing activitie — 2.7 — — — 2.7
Advances to affiliate — — (6.9 (1.9 8.3 —
Net cash (used in) provided by investing

activities (0.8) (18.5) (13.4) (3.1 8.2 (27.5)
Financing activities
Payments of lor-term deb! — 3.2 — (0.2 — (3.9
Borrowings under ABL — 143.¢ — — — 143.¢
Payments under AB — (131.2) — — — (131.9)
Advances from affiliate 1.6 6.4 — — (8.9 —
Distributions to no-controlling interest: — — — (2.5 — (2.5
Net cash provided by (used in) financing

activities 1.6 15.4 — (2.7) (8.9 6.3
Effect of exchange rate changes on ¢ 0.2 — 0.6 0.2 — 1.3
Net increase (decrease) in cash & cash

equivalents 0.8 (7.6) (17.6) 0.1 — (24.2)
Cash & cash equivalents, beginning ¢

period 7.8 9.1 26.C 5.3 — 48.2
Cash & cash equivalents, end of perio $ 8.7 $ 15 $ 8.4 $ 5.4 $ — $ 24.C
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Consolidating Statements of Condensed Cash Flows

(in millions of U.S. dollars)
Unaudited

For the Six Months Ended July 3, 2010

Cott

Beverage Non- Elimination
Cott Guarantor Guarantor
Corporation Inc. Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Entries Consolidatec
Operating activities
Net income (loss $ 33 $ 21.: $ 341 $ 1.8 $ (46 $ 364
Depreciation and amortizatic 3.3 18.C 6.€ 2.8 — 30.¢
Amortization of financing fee 0.1 0.8 0.1 — — 1.C
Shar-based compensation expel 0.€ 1.0 0.1 — — 1.7
Decrease in deferred income ta — — (0.2 — (0.2
Equity (loss) income, net of distributio (30.0 3.2 (21.9 — 54.¢ —
Intercompany transactiol 2.1 0.9 — — (3.0 —
Lease contract termination payme — (4.8 — — — (4.9
Other noi-cash item: 2.C 1.8 0.2 — — 4.C
Net change in operating assets and liabill (7.9 (10.5) (18.0) 3.8 3.C (29.5)
Net cash provided by operating activit 4.C 25.2 1.€ 8.€ — 39.5
Investing activities
Additions to property, plant & equipme (3.7 (8.9 (4.9 (1.7 — (18.7)
Additions to intangible & other asse — (3.9 — — — (3.9
Proceeds from sale of property, plant &
equipmen — 0.2 0.2 — — 0.4
Advances to affiliate 21.C — (6.0 (2.9 (12.6) —
Net cash provided by (used in) investing
activities 17.€ (12.7) (10.2) (4.7 (12.6) (21.0)
Financing activities
Payments of lor-term debt — (15.9 — (0.2 — (16.7)
Borrowings under ABL — 99.t 42.F — — 142.(
Payments under AB — (111.9 (40.2) — — (151.¢
Advances from affiliate 2.4 6.C (21.0 — 12.¢ —
Intercompany contributior (18.7) — 18.7 — — —
Distributions to no-controlling interest: — — — (2.7) — (2.7)
Financing fee: — (0.2 — — — (0.2)
Net cash (used in) provided by financing
activities (16.9) (22.0) — (2.9 12.€ (28.¢)
Effect of exchange rate changes on ¢ (0.7) — (0.9 0.€ — (0.9
Net increase (decrease) in cash & ca!
equivalents 5.5 (8.9 (9.5 2.2 — (10.6)
Cash & cash equivalents, beginning of perio 4.2 10.4 12.2 4.1 — 30.¢
Cash & cash equivalents, end of perio $ 9.7 $ 16 $ 2.7 $ 6.3 $ — $ 20.:
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Item 2. Managemen’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition ahResults of Operations

This discussion is intended to further the readenderstanding of the consolidated financial caodiaind results of operations of our
Company. It should be read in conjunction withfihancial statements included in this quarterlyortwn Form 10-Q and our annual report
on Form 10-K for the year ended January 1, 2014 ‘@010 Annual Report”). These historical finan@ttements may not be indicative of
our future performance. This Management’s Discusaind Analysis of Financial Condition and Resuft®perations contains a number of
forward-looking statements, all of which are basadur current expectations and could be affecyeithd uncertainties and risks referred to
under “Risk Factors” in Item 1A in our 2010 AnnirReport.

Overview

We are the world’s largest retailer brand bevei@gapany. Our objective of creating sustainable itargn growth in revenue and
profitability is predicated on working closely witlur retailer partners to provide proven profitafeducts. As a “fast followersf innovative
products, our goal is to identify which new produate succeeding in the marketplace and develdtasionivate label products to provide
our retail partners and their consumers with higality products at a better value. This objectsétcreasingly relevant in more difficult
economic times.

The beverage market is subject to some seasonativas. Our beverage sales are generally higheéngithe warmer months and also
can be influenced by the timing of holidays, andther fluctuations. This seasonality also causesvorking capital needs to fluctuate with
inventory being higher in the first half of the yéa meet the peak summer demand and accountyabteideclining in the fall as customers
pay their higher-than-average outstanding balafroes the summer deliveries.

Retailer brand suppliers, such as us, typicallyajgeat low margins and therefore relatively sroh#inges in cost structures can
materially impact results.

Ingredient and packaging costs represent a sigmifiportion of our cost of sales. These costs @gest to global and regional
commodity price trends. Our largest commoditiespaigethylene terephthalate (“PET”) resin, aluminwmrn, fruit and fruit concentrates.
We attempt to manage our exposure to fluctuationsgredient and packaging costs of our productsrptementing price increases as
needed and entering into fixed price commitments&fportion of our ingredient and packaging requieats. We have entered into fixed pi
commitments for the majority of our forecasted alwm requirements for 2011, as well as approximydtalf of our requirements for 2012.

On August 17, 2010, we completed the acquisitibe {Cliffstar Acquisition”) of substantially all dhe assets and liabilities of Cliffstar
Corporation (“Cliffstar”)and its affiliated companies for approximately $80million payable in cash, $14.0 million in defegrconsideratio
to be paid over three years and contingent coreiderof up to $55.0 million. The first $15.0 mdh of the contingent consideration is based
upon the achievement of milestones in certain esiparprojects in 2010, which were achieved in 20k® remainder of the contingent
consideration is based on the achievement of oepiformance measures during the fiscal year gnthnuary 1, 2011. The fair value of the
contingent consideration was $33.2 million as d¢§ 242011, and is payable no later than July 24,12 The estimated working capital
amount was subject to final adjustment and on Fabriil, 2011, the parties agreed that the finakimgrcapital amount was $3.0 million.

We were notified on May 9, 2011 by the seller aff€far of certain objections to the performanceaswees used to calculate the
contingent consideration, and the seller assertddim for amounts in excess of the amounts accagetbntingent consideration at July 2,
2011. For certain of the objections, Cott assertrthterclaims against the seller, the settlementhac¢h will be under binding arbitration
processes according to the terms of the asset@edgreement. We believe the fair value of thérgent consideration has been properly
recorded in accordance with the asset purchaseragrda and we have not adjusted our estimated daievior the objections raised by the
seller or for our counterclaims. The final resautof these matters may result in amounts payabtieet seller that materially vary from our
current estimated fair value. Changes in the falue of contingent consideration will be recordedur Consolidated Statement of
Operations. On July 29, 2011, Cott made an intpayment of $21.0 million to the seller, represemt25.7 million for undisputed amounts
of the contingent consideration, net of a $4.7iolrefund due to Cott as a result of the finakd®iination of working capital. Any additional
payment to the seller as determined by the arbitraty result in interest payable at a rate of J&¥annum per the terms of the asset
purchase agreement.
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During the first half of 2011, our revenues incexhd9.1%, or 46.7% excluding the impact of foreggnhange from the corresponding
prior year period. This increase was due primadlthe Cliffstar Acquisition. Excluding the impaaftthe Cliffstar Acquisition, and the impz
of foreign exchange, revenue increased 5.0% owesfirtt half of 2010.

In the U.S., we have been supplying Walmart wiikigie label carbonated soft drinks (“CSDs”) undereaclusive supply agreement
dated December 21, 1998, between our wholly-ownédidiary Cott Beverages Inc. and Walmart Stomss, (the “Exclusive U.S. Supply
Contract”). We also supply Walmart and its affdidtcompanies with a variety of products on a nasiuskve basis in the United States,
Canada, United Kingdom and Mexico, including CS@sar, still and sparkling flavored waters, juipgce-based products, bottled water,
energy drinks and ready-to-drink teas. On Janu@r2@09, we received written notice from Walmaatisig that Walmart was exercising its
right to terminate, without cause, the Exclusiv&.WBupply Contract. The termination is effectiveJanuary 28, 2012. This has the effect of
returning our relationship to more typical marless over time, and allows Walmart to introducesouppliers in the future, if it so desires.
The termination provision of the Exclusive U.S. BlypContract provides for our exclusive right tgoply CSDs to Walmart in the U.S. to be
phased out over a period of three years followiotice of termination (the “Notice Period’Accordingly, we had the exclusive right to sug
at least two-thirds of Walmart's total CSD volumieshe U.S. during the first 12 months of the Netieeriod, and we had the exclusive right
to supply at least one-third of Walmart’s total C&umes in the U.S. during the second 12 monthiih@Notice Period. During the final 12
months of the Notice Period, there is no minimumppdy requirement. Notwithstanding the notice ofrigration of the Exclusive U.S. Supply
Contract, we continue to supply Walmart with alitsfprivate label CSDs in the U.S. However, shadalmart choose to introduce an
additional supplier to fulfill a portion of its reqements for its private label CSDs, our operategults could be materially adversely affec
Sales to Walmart for the six months ended July02,12and July 3, 2010 accounted for 32.3% and 2®f784tal revenue, respectively.

Summary financial results

Our net income for the three months ended July21Zthe “second quarter”) and the six months erdddyd2, 2011 (“first half of 2011”
or “year to date”) was $26.5 million or $0.28 pdutkd share and $33.3 million or $0.35 per dilusddre, respectively, compared with net
income of $22.3 million or $0.28 per diluted sharel $33.8 million or $0.42 per diluted share far three and six months ended July 3, 2
respectively.

The following items of significance impacted ounaficial results for the first half of 2011:

» the Cliffstar Acquisition contributed $328.5 miltido revenue and $23.0 million to operating inco
» gross profit declined to 13.4% compared to 16.68fthe comparable prior year period due primaalpigher commodity cost

e ourrevenue increased 49.1% from the comparabde peiar period. Absent foreign exchange impaciemere increased 46.7%
from the comparable prior year period, primarilyeda the Cliffstar Acquisition. Excluding the impaxf the Cliffstar Acquisition
and foreign exchange, revenue increased 5.0% fnencamparable prior year peric

» our filled beverage 8-ounce equivalents (“beverzgge volume”) increased 25.0% year to date duegpitito the Cliffstar
Acquisition which contributed a 27.6% increasehia North America operating segment; Excluding thpdct of the Cliffstar
Acquisition, our beverage case volume increaseth@mdd 5.2% in North Americi

« our selling, general and administrative (“SG&A")p@nses for the first half of 2011 increased to $90illion from $66.9 million
in the comparable prior year period, due primanlyhe Cliffstar Acquisition, certain employee teld costs, information
technology costs, professional fees, and custontiemal reserve:

» our interest expense increased to $29.0 million y@date from $12.3 million in the comparable pgear period due primarily to
the issuance of $375.0 million of senior notes #ratdue on September 1, 2018 (‘2018 Note");

» the decrease in other expense of $1.5 million weespdimarily to the write-off of financing fees $1.4 million in the comparable
prior year period; an

» our income tax expense decreased $10.9 milliontpedate from the comparable prior year period, ghirmarily to lower pretax
income in the United States and Canada, the reatéon of our legal entity structure and refinaneof intercompany dek
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The following items of significance impacted ounaficial results for the first half of 2010:

e increased competition in North America led to bagercase volume declines in that segment of 7.a#b fhe comparable prior
year period

e new customer gains and improved product mix indt€. led to a beverage case volume improvemertiahsegment of 8.1%
from the comparable prior year peric

» increased gross profit margins to 16.6% as comparé6.3% from the comparable prior year per

* increase in the foreign exchange rate for the Ganatbllar, pound sterling and Mexican peso as @mepto the U.S. dollar that
resulted in a $15.9 million favorable impact oneewes and a $2.0 million favorable impact on gpuséit;

» continued SG&A cost saving
* increase in other expenses of $5.0 million dueteifin exchange transaction loss
» decline in interest expense of $2.8 million resigtirom our reduction of debt in the second hal2@®9; anc

» tax expense of $13.2 million in the current yeac@mpared to a prior year tax benefit of $11.6iomll The prior year benefit
included favorable reversals of accruals relataghizertain tax position:

Non-GAAP Measures

In this report, we supplement our reporting of rawe determined in accordance with GAAP by excludirggimpact of foreign
exchange to separate the impact of currency exehiartg changes from Cott’s results of operatioms emsome cases, by excluding the
impact of Cliffstar. Additionally, Cott supplemerits reporting of SG&A, cost of sales, gross prditd operating income in accordance with
GAAP by excluding the impact of the Cliffstar Acqition. Cott excludes these items to better undadstrends in the business and the im
of the Cliffstar Acquisition. Because Cott usessthadjusted financial results in the managemeit$ dlusiness and to understand business
performance independent of the Cliffstar Acquisitimanagement believes this supplemental informasiaiseful to investors for their
independent evaluation and understanding of Cotire business performance and the performance ofahagement. The non-GAAP
financial measures described above are in addibipand not meant to be considered superior ta,substitute for, Co#’financial statemen
prepared in accordance with GAAP. In addition,rtba-GAAP financial measures included in this repefiiect management’s judgment of
particular items, and may be different from, aneféfiore may not be comparable to, similarly titheelasures reported by other companies.
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The following table summarizes our Consolidatedestents of Operations as a percentage of revemulddhree and six months
ended July 2, 2011 and July 3, 2010, respectively:

For the Three Months Ended For the Six Months Ended

July 2, 2011 July 3, 2010 July 2, 2011 July 3, 2010
(in millions of U.S. dollars $ % $ % $ % $ %
Revenue 640.C 100.C 4247 100.C 1,174.. 100.C 787.c 100.C
Cost of sale: 552.( 86.z 351.z 82.7 1,016. 86.6 656.¢ 83.
Gross profit 88.C 13.& 73.t 17.2 157.¢ 13.2 130.7 16.€
Selling, general, and administrative exper 45.1 7.C 34t 8.1 90.2 7.7 66.C 8.5
Loss on disposal of property, plant & equipm — — 0.1y — — — 0.1 —
Restructuring — — — — — — (0.5) (0.3)
Operating incom: 42.¢ 6.6 39.1 9.2 67.4 57 64.z 8.2
Other expense, n — — 0.5 0.1 0.8 0.1 2.3 0.2
Interest expense, n 14.€ 2.3 6.1 1.4 29.C 25 12: 1.€
Income before income tax 28.% 45 32Ft 7.7 37.€ 3.1 49 6.2
Income tax expens 0.7 0.1 8.8 2.1 2 0.2 13.2 1.7
Net income 27.€ 4.4 237 5.€ 35.¢ 2S5  36.4 4.€
Less: Net income attributable to r-controlling interest: 1.1 0.2 1.4 0.3 2.C 0.2 2.6 0.2
Net income attributed to Cott Corporati 26.5 4.2 225 5.3 33.8 2.7 33.t 4.3
Depreciation & amortizatio 23.¢ 3.7 14.¢ 3.5 47.4 4.C 30.t 3.6
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The following table summarizes our revenue and aipeg income by operating segment for the threesidhonths ended July 2, 2011

and July 3, 2010, respectively:

For the Three Months Ended

For the Six Months Ended

(in millions of U.S. Dollars July 2, 2011 July 3, 201C July 2, 2011 July 3, 201(
Revenu

North America $ 491: $ 300.¢ $ 920.] $ 564.C
United Kingdom 126.C 101.Z 212.c 180.¢
Mexico 16.2 14.1 27.¢ 25.¢
RCI 6.5 8.6 14.1 16.€
Total $ 640.( $ 424, $ 1,174.; $ 787.¢
Operating income (los:

North America $ 30.C $ 30. $ 50.¢ $ 511
United Kingdom 11.4 8.7 14.4 11.7
Mexico (0.6) (2.2 (2.7 (4.0
RCI 2.1 2.4 4.3 5.4
Total $ 42¢ $ 39.1 $ 67.4 $ 64.C

Revenues are attributed to operating segments loawstek location of the plant.

The following table summarizes our beverage casgnve by operating segment for the three monthsaddly 2, 2011 and July 3,

2010, respectively:

For the Three Months Ended

(in millions of cases July 2, 2011

Volume 80z. equivalent casefotal Beverage (including
concentrate

North America

United Kingdom

Mexico

RCI

Total

Volume 80z. equivalent cas Filled Beverage
North America

United Kingdom

Mexico

RCI

Total

217.7
58.2
11.¢
61.€

349.¢

198.¢
53.7
11.€

264.]

July 3, 201C

167.5
53.t
10.1
91.7

322.¢

147
50.:
10.1

0.1

207.¢

For the Six Months Ended

July 2, 201! July 3, 201(
412.¢ 319.t
101.% 98.(C

20.z 18.4
144.] 176.C
678.¢ 611.¢
369.2 277.¢

92.¢ 89.t

20.2 18.4

— 0.1
482.2 385.¢

The revenue by product table for the three montiged July 3, 2010 has been revised to separatedept the category “Juice,” which

is a now significant portion of our revenue du¢hte Cliffstar Acquisition.

The following tables summarize revenue and volumprbduct for the three and six months ended JuR021 and July 3, 2010,

respectively:

For the Three Months Ended July 2, 2011

(in millions of U.S. dollars North America United Kingdom Mexico RCI Total
Revenu

Carbonated soft drink $ 200.7 $ 53.¢ $12.2 $— $266.¢
Juice 152.2 4.2 0.€ — 157.<
Concentrat 2.C 1.€ — 6.5 10.1
All other products 136.¢ 66.4 3.C — 205.¢
Total $ 491.: $ 126.C $16.2 $6.5 $640.(
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For the Three Months Ended July 2, 2011

(in millions of physical case: North America United Kingdom Mexico RCI Total
80z. volume
Carbonated soft drink 92.¢ 27.L 7.8 — 127.3
Juice 34.t 1.1 0.7 — 36.5
Concentrats 19.C 4.2 — 61.€ 84.¢
All other products 71.¢ 25.2 3.2 — 100.4
Total 2177 58.2 11.¢ 61.€ 349.:
For the Six Months Ended July 2, 2011
(in millions of U.S. dollars North America United Kingdom Mexico RCI Total
Revenu
Carbonated soft drink $ 357.( $ 86.¢ $21.€ $ — $ 465t
Juice 312.2 6.2 1.7 — 320.1
Concentrats 4.2 1.8 — 14.1 20.z
All other products 246.€ 117.¢ 4.3 — 368.:
Total $ 9201 % 2125 $27.6  $141  $1,174.
For the Six Months Ended July 2, 2011
(in millions of physical case: North America United Kingdom Mexico RCI Total
80z. volume
Carbonated soft drink 171.1 47.7 14.5 — 233.:
Juice 71.€ 1.7 1.3 — 74.€
Concentratt 43.¢ 8.8 — 144.1 196.5
All other products 126.2 43.t 4.4 — 174.]
Total 412.¢ 101.% 20.z 144.1 678.¢
For the Three Months Ended July 3, 2010
(in millions of U.S. dollars North America United Kingdom Mexico RCI Total
Revenu
Carbonated soft drink $ 183.7 $ 39.( $12.1 $ — $ 234.¢
Juice 2.5 3.6 0.2 — 6.€
Concentrate 1.¢ 1.2 — 8.€ 11.€
All other products 112.5 57.C 1.8 — 171.F
Total $ 300f $ 1012 $141 $ 8€ $ 424
For the Three Months Ended July 3, 2010
(in millions of physical case: North America United Kingdom Mexico RCI Total
80z. volume
Carbonated soft drink 88.7 26.1 7.8 — 122.¢
Juice 0.2 1.1 0.1 — 14
Concentrate 20.C 3.2 — 91.7 114.¢
All other products 58.¢€ 23.1 2.2 — 83.¢
Total 167.5 53.t 10.1 91.7 322.¢
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For the Six Months Ended July 3, 2010

(in millions of U.S. dollars North America United Kingdom Mexico RCI Total
Revenut
Carbonated soft drink $ 350.4 $ 72.t $22.t $ — $445.¢
Juice 2.5 5.3 0.5 — 8.3
Concentratt 3.8 2.€ — 16.€ 23.C
All other products 207.2 100.t 2.9 — 310.¢
Total $ 564.( $ 180.¢ $25.¢ $ 16.€ $787.¢
For the Six Months Ended July 3, 2010
(in millions of physical case: North America United Kingdom Mexico RCI Total
80z. volume
Carbonated soft drink 169.: 47.4 14.¢ — 231t
Juice 0.2 N5 0.4 — 2.1
Concentratt 41.F 8.5 — 176.C 226.(
All other products 108.t 40.€ 3.2 — 152.:
Total 319.t 98.( 18.4 176.C 611.C
Results of operations
The following table summarizes the change in reedmuoperating segment for the three and six moatked July 2, 2011,
respectively:
For the Three Months Ended
(in millions of U.S. dollars July 2, 2011
North United
Cott America Kingdom Mexico RCI

Change in revenue $ 215.2 $190.t $ 24.¢ $ 21 $ (2.3
Impact of foreign exchan¢t (14.0 (3.9 (9.6) (1.7) —
Change excluding foreign exchar $ 201.: $187.2 $ 15.C $ 1.C $ (2.])
Percentage change in revel 50.7% 63.5% 24.5% 14.% -24.4%
Percentage change in revenue excluding foreignasgs 47.4% 62.2% 15.(% 7.1% -24.%%
Impact of Cliffstar Acquisitior (162.9) (162.9) — — —
Change excluding foreign exchange and CliffstariAsitjon $ 39.1 $ 25.C $ 15.C $ 1.C $ (2.7
Percentage change in revenue excluding foreignasgand Cliffstar

Acquisition 9.2% 8.2% 15.(% 7.1% -24.4%
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(in millions of U.S. dollars

Change in revenue
Impact of foreign exchan¢t

Change excluding foreign exchar

Percentage change in revet

Percentage change in revenue excluding foreignaegsd
Impact of Cliffstar Acquisitior

Change excluding foreign exchange and Cliffstaruisition
Percentage change in revenue excluding foreignamgiand Cliffstar

Acquisition

For the Six Months Ended

July 2, 2011
North United
Cott America Kingdom Mexico RCI
$ 386. $ 356.1 $ 314 $ 1.7 $ (2.7
(19.0 (5.2) (12.1) (1.7) —
$ 367. $ 350.¢ $ 19.7 $— $ (2.7
49.1% 63.1% 17.4% 6.€% -16.1%
46.7% 62.2% 10.7% — % -16.1%
(328.5) (328.5) — —
$ 39.C $ 224 $ 195 @ $— $ (2.7)
5.C% 4.C% 10.7% — % -16.1%

Impact of foreign exchange is the difference betwide current year’s revenue translated utilizimg¢urrent year's average foreign
exchange rates less the current’s revenue translated utilizing the prior y's average foreign exchange ra

The following table summarizes cost of sales amdgprofit for the three and six months ended 2uR011 and July 3, 2010,

respectively:

Revenue, net

Cost of sale:

Cost of sales as a percentage of reve
Gross profit

Gross profit as a percentage of reve

Revenue, net

Cost of sale:

Cost of sales as a percentage of reve
Gross profit

Gross profit as a percentage of reve

For the Three
Months Ended

July 2, 2011

$ 640.(

552.(
86.2%

$ 88.(C
13.€%

For the Six

Months Ended

July 2, 2011

$ 1,174.

1,016.f
86.€%

$ 157.¢
13.4%%

36

Excluding

Impact of Impact of

Cliffstar Cliffstar Cliffstar
Acquisition Acquisition Acquisition
$ 152.( $ 162.2 $ 477.¢
133.1 143.% 408.7
87.¢% 88.2% 85.5%

$ 18¢ $ 18.¢ $ 69.1
12.2% 11.7% 14.5%
Excluding

Impact of Impact of

Cliffstar Cliffstar Cliffstar
Acquisition Acquisition Acquisition
$ 152.( $ 328t $ 845.¢
133.1 289.¢ 726.7
87.€% 88.2% 85.9%

$ 18¢ $ 38 $ 118.¢
12.2% 11.8% 14.1%

For the Three
Months Ended

July 3, 2010
$ 4245
351.2
82.1%
$ 73.t
17.2%
For the Six
Months Ended
July 3, 2010
$ 787.¢
656.¢
83.4%
$ 130.7
16.6%
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Revenue- Revenue increased $215.3 million or 50.7% and&38illion or 49.1% in the second quarter and yeatate, respectively,
from the comparable prior year periods. The CHifsicquisition contributed $162.2 million and $32&illion to revenue in the second
guarter and year to date, respectively. Excludmsgimpact of the Cliffstar Acquisition and foreigrchange, revenue increased 9.2% and
5.0% in the second quarter and year to date, régphlc

North America revenue increased $190.5 million 21366 and $356.1 million or 63.1% in the second tpraand year to date,
respectively, from the comparable prior year pegidche Cliffstar Acquisition contributed $162.2 lioih and $328.5 million to revenue in the
second quarter and year to date, respectively udikty the impact of foreign exchange and the Géffé\cquisition, revenue increased 8.3%
and 4.0% in the second quarter and year to datpectéively, primarily due to a 5.2% increase indrage case volume. Net selling price per
beverage case (which is net revenue divided byrbgeecase volume) remained flat in the second guand year to date, respectively, from
the comparable prior year periods.

U.K. revenue increased $24.8 million or 24.5% aB.4 million or 17.4% in the second quarter and yealate, respectively, from the
comparable prior year periods due primarily to ioy&d product mix (primarily increases in sports andrgy products). Net selling price per
beverage case increased 16.9% and 13.4% for tbadeuarter and year to date, respectively, froencttmparable prior year periods, due
primarily to a price increase that became effedtivihe second quarter. Absent foreign exchangadatyfpJ.K. revenue increased 15.0% and
10.7% in the second quarter and year to date, caspby.

Mexico revenue increased $2.1 million or 14.9% &hd million or 6.6% in the second quarter and yeatate, respectively, from the
comparable prior year periods, due primarily taramease in volume offset in part by a 2.1% and@d@crease in net selling price per
beverage case for the second quarter and yeatdaprdapectively. Absent foreign exchange impaeixigb revenue decreased 7.1% and
remained flat for the second quarter and year te, daspectively, from the comparable prior yearquks.

RCI revenue decreased $2.1 million or 24.4% and 82llion or 16.1% in the second quarter and yealdte, respectively, from the
comparable prior year periods, due primarily teealite in volume of 32.8% and 18.1% in the secamarigr and year to date, respectively,
primarily due to the timing of shipments. Net sailiprice per beverage case increased 22.2% andnehrféat in the second quarter and year
to date, respectively, from the comparable pri@ryeriods. RCI primarily sells concentrate.

Cost of Sales- Cost of sales represented 86.2% and 86.6% ofivevia the second quarter and year to date, régplyctcompared to
82.7% and 83.4% in the comparable prior year perigacluding the impact of the Cliffstar Acquisitiocost of sales represented 85.5% and
85.9% of revenue for the second quarter and yedatm, respectively. The cost of sales as a pexgeruf revenue for Cliffstar was 88.3%
88.2% of revenue for the second quarter and yedati, respectively. Variable costs represente@Pd@&nd 76.4% of total sales in the second
guarter and year to date, respectively, and 73:1286/8.4%, respectively, in the comparable priorr yeaiods. Major elements of these
variable costs included ingredient and packagirgis;alistribution costs and fees paid to thirdyparanufacturers. The increase in cost of
sales was due primarily to higher commaodity costs.

Gross Profit— Gross profit as a percentage of revenue decreasE®i&8% and 13.4% in the second quarter and yegattn respectivel
from 17.3% and 16.6% in the comparable prior yeaiogls. Excluding the impact of the Cliffstar Acsjtion, gross profit as a percentage of
revenue declined to 14.5% and 14.1% in the secaader and year to date, respectively, from 17.8%1%6.6% in the comparable prior year
periods.

Selling, General and Administrative ExpensesSG&A increased $10.6 million or 30.7% and $23iion or 34.8% in the second
quarter and year to date, respectively, from theparable prior year periods. The Cliffstar Acqudsitcontributed $7.5 million and $15.7
million of SG&A costs, or 21.7% and 23.5% of thenease, in the second quarter and year to dapeatgely. Excluding the impact of the
Cliffstar Acquisition, SG&A increased $2.7 milliar 7.8% and $6.5 million or 9.7% in the second tpraand year to date, respectively, from
the comparable prior year periods. The increaskersecond quarter and year to date was due plynaemployee related costs, informat
technology costs, professional fees, and custonekiegal reserves. As a percentage of revenue, S@&Aeased to 7.0% in the second
quarter from 8.1% in the comparable prior yearqukriyear to date, SG&A as a percentage of revepaeedsed to 7.7% from 8.5% in the
comparable prior year period.

Operating Income- Operating income was $42.9 million and $67.4iomlin the second quarter and year to date, reispéct
compared to $39.1 million and $64.2 million, redpedy, in the comparable prior year periods. THéf€ar Acquisition contributed $11.4
million and $23.0 million to operating income ireteecond quarter and year to date, respectivebtulfing the impact of the Cliffstar
Acquisition, operating income declined by $7.2 iillor 18.4% and $18.7 million or 29.1% in the setquarter and year to date,
respectively.
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Other Expense (Income)} Other expense decreased $0.5 million and $11&mih the second quarter and year to date, resdg, as
compared to the comparable prior year periods dinegpily to a $1.4 million write-off of financingefes in the prior year periods.

Interest Expense- Interest expense increased $8.5 million and $t6libn in the second quarter and year to datepeetively, from
the comparable prior year periods, due primarilg tigher average debt balance resulting fromga$gaince of the 2018 Notes.

Income Taxes We recorded income tax expense of $0.7 million $&@& million in the second quarter and year to datgpectively,
compared with $8.8 million and $13.2 million in tbemparable prior year periods. The decrease ipdoerily to lower pretax income in t
United Sates and Canada, the reorganization degaf entity structure and refinancing of interc@myp debt. The reorganization of our legal
entity structure and refinancing of intercompanitde expected to result in a long term reductib@att’s effective tax rate versus statutory
rate.

Liquidity and Financial Condition

The following table summarizes our cash flows fa three and six months ended July 2, 2011 and3J@910, respectively, as
reported in our Consolidated Statements of Casws-lo the accompanying Consolidated Financial 8tatds:

For the Three Months Ended For the Six Months Ended
(in millions of U.S. dollars July 2, 2011 July 3, 201C July 2, 201! July 3, 201(
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activi $ 21: $ 31: $ (4.9 $ 39t
Net cash used in investing activit| (15.7) (12.5) (27.5) (21.7)
Net cash (used in) provided by financing activi (18.7) (21.7) 6.3 (28.€)
Effect of exchange rate changes on ¢ 0.1 (0.6) 1.3 (0.9
Net decrease in cash & cash equival (11.9) (2.9 (24.2) (20.¢)
Cash & cash equivalents, beginning of pel 35.¢ 23.2 48.2 30.¢
Cash & cash equivalents, end of per $  24.( $ 205 $ 24.C $ 20.:&

Financial, and Capital Resources and Liquidity

As of July 2, 2011, we had total debt of $631.3iomland $24.0 million of cash and cash equivaleptspared to $247.7 million of
debt and $20.3 million of cash and cash equivalasitsf July 3, 2010.

We believe that our level of resources, which idelsicash on hand, available borrowings under aatdmsed lending credit facility
(the “ABL facility”) and funds provided by operatie, will be adequate to meet our expenses, capipenditures, and debt service
obligations for the next twelve months. Our abititlygenerate cash to meet our current expensedednicgervice obligations will depend on
our future performance. If we do not have enougtihd¢a pay our debt service obligations or if theLABcility, the 8.375% senior notes that
are due on November 15, 2017 (the “2017 Notes")her2018 Notes were to become currently due, egthmaturity or as a result of a
breach, we may be required to take actions suemasding the credit agreement governing our ABllifaor the indentures governing our
2017 Notes and 2018 Notes, refinancing all or phaur existing debt, selling assets, incurringiiddal indebtedness or raising equity. For
periods extending beyond twelve months, we belibaeour ability to generate cash to meet our egpgland debt service obligations and to
otherwise reduce our debt as anticipated will prilmaepend on our ability to retain a substangialount of volume from our key customers
and maintain the profitability of our businesswi do not generate sufficient cash from operat@msave excess debt availability to meet our
expenses and debt service obligations or if the A&llity, the 2017 Notes or the 2018 Notes werbd¢oome currently due, either at maturity
or as a result of a breach, we may be requiredk® actions such as amending our ABL facility,itftdenture governing the 2017 Notes, or
the indenture governing the 2018 Notes, refinanalhgr part of our existing debt, selling assétsurring additional indebtedness or raising
equity. If we need to seek additional financinggrehis no assurance that this additional finaneiitigoe available.
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Should we desire to consummate significant acgoisipportunities or undertake significant expansgtivities, our capital needs
would increase and could result in our need todweivailable amounts under the ABL facility, incseavailable borrowings under our ABL
facility or access public or private debt and eguaitarkets.

As of July 2, 2011, our total availability undeetABL facility was $275.0 million, which was based our borrowing base (accounts
receivables, inventory, and fixed assets) as gf I&) 2011 (the June month-end under the termiseo€ttedit agreement governing our ABL
facility), and we had $20.1 million of ABL borrowgs outstanding and $9.5 million in outstandingelettof credit. As a result, our excess
availability under the ABL facility was $245.3 nmidh. Each month’s borrowing base is not effectinélsubmitted to the lenders, which
usually occurs on the fifteenth day of the follogrimonth.

Operating activities

Cash used in operating activities year to date$4a3 million compared to cash provided of $39.9iomilin the comparable prior year
period. The $43.8 million decrease was primarilg tlutiming of accounts receivable due to highdumes, and an income tax recoverabl
the comparable prior year period.

Investing activities

Cash used in investing activities was $27.5 millje@ar to date compared to $21.1 million in the caraple prior year period, with the
$6.4 million increase due primarily to an increaseapital expenditures.

Financing activities

Cash provided by financing activities was $6.3 imnillyear to date compared to cash used of $28l®mih the comparable prior year
period. The change was due primarily to an increaset borrowings under the ABL facility of $21n8llion and a decrease in payments on
long-term debt of $12.7 million.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements
We had no off-balance sheet arrangements as dafiméer Item 303(a)(4) of Regulation S-K as of ZjIp011.

Contractual Obligations

We have no material changes to the disclosureismthtter made in our Annual Report on Form 10-Ktfie year ended January 1,
2011.

Debt
Asset Based Lending Facili

On March 31, 2008, we entered into a credit agreémvgh JPMorgan Chase Bank N.A. as Agent thattecean ABL facility to provid
financing for our North America, U.K. and Mexicoarating segments. In connection with the Cliffftaguisition, we refinanced the ABL
facility on August 17, 2010 to, among other thingsvide for the Cliffstar Acquisition, the issua&naf the 2018 Notes and the application of
net proceeds therefrom, the underwritten publieraffy of 13,340,000 common shares at a price @&7#&per share and the application of net
proceeds therefrom and to increase the amountaé@ifor borrowings to $275.0 million. We drew doaportion of the indebtedness under
the ABL facility in order to fund the Cliffstar Aeggition. We incurred $5.4 million of financing feé connection with the refinancing of the
ABL facility. The financing fees are being amortizesing the straight-line method over a four-yesniqal.

As of July 2, 2011, we had $20.1 million in borrog$ under the ABL facility outstanding. The commeétmfee was 0.5% per annum of
the unused commitment, which was $245.4 millionfaduly 2, 2011.

8.125% Senior Notes due in 2018

On August 17, 2010, we issued $375.0 million of20&8 Notes. The issuer of the 2018 Notes is owllydowned subsidiary Cott
Beverages Inc., but we and most of our U.S., Camaaind United Kingdom subsidiaries guarantee ti® Mbtes. The interest on the 2018
Notes is payable se-annually on March # and Septembett 1 of each year.

39



Table of Contents

We incurred $8.6 million of financing fees in costien with the 2018 Notes. The financing fees am@ amortized using the straight-
line method over an eight-year period, which repnés the duration of the 2018 Notes. The amortimatixpense calculated under the straight-
line method does not differ materially from theeetive-interest method.

8.375% Senior Notes due in 2017

On November 13, 2009, we issued $215.0 milliorhef2017 Notes. The 2017 Notes were issued at an$iBidn discount. The issuer
of the 2017 Notes is our wholly-owned subsidiaryt®@zverages Inc., but we and most of our U.S. a@&mn and United Kingdom
subsidiaries guarantee the 2017 Notes. The interetite 2017 Notes is payable semi-annually on V& and November 18 of each year.

We incurred $5.1 million of financing fees in contien with the 2017 Notes. The financing fees amd amortized using the straight-
line method over an eight-year period, which repnés the duration of the 2017 Notes. The amortiragixpense calculated under the straight-
line method does not differ materially from theeetive-interest method.

8% Senior Subordinated Notes due in 2011

We repurchased the remaining outstanding 8% seolmordinated notes due December 15, 2011 (the “R@14s”) on February 1,
2010, and recorded a loss on buyback of $0.1 millidne 2011 Notes acquired by us have been retiretlyve have discontinued the payn
of interest.

Credit Ratings and Covenant Compliance
Credit Ratings

We have no material changes to the disclosureiemthtter made in our Annual Report on Form 10-Kifi@ year ended January 1,
2011.

Covenant Compliance
8.125% Senior Notes due in 2018

Under the indenture governing the 2018 Notes, wesabject to a number of covenants, including caménthat limit our and certain of
our subsidiaries’ ability, subject to certain extteps and qualifications, to (i) pay dividends oaka distributions, repurchase equity
securities, prepay subordinated debt or make cerntgestments, (ii) incur additional debt or iss@etain disqualified stock or preferred st
(iii) create or incur liens on assets securing lidéness, (iv) merge or consolidate with anothemgany (applies only to Cott Corporation :
Cott Beverages Inc., our wholly-owned subsidiargt #e issuer of the 2018 Notes) or sell all or taftgally all of our assets taken as a
whole, (v) enter into transactions with affiliagsd (vi) sell all or substantially all of the assef a guarantor subsidiary of Cott Corporation.
We have been in compliance with all of the covesamider the 2018 Notes and there have been no ameat&lto any such covenants since
the 2018 Notes were issued.

8.375% Senior Notes due in 2017

Under the indenture governing the 2017 Notes, wesabject to a number of covenants, including camenthat limit our and certain of
our subsidiaries’ ability, subject to certain extteqps and qualifications, to (i) pay dividends oaka distributions, repurchase equity
securities, prepay subordinated debt or make cerntgestments, (ii) incur additional debt or iss@etain disqualified stock or preferred st
(iii) create or incur liens on assets securing ldéness, (iv) merge or consolidate with anothemgany (applies only to Cott Corporation :
Cott Beverages Inc., our wholly-owned subsidiargt Hre issuer of the 2017 Notes) or sell all or tafuslly all of our assets taken as a
whole, (v) enter into transactions with affiliatesd (vi) sell all or substantially all of the assetf a guarantor subsidiary of Cott Corporation.
We have been in compliance with all of the covesamider the 2017 Notes and there have been no ameat&lto any such covenants since
the 2017 Notes were issued.
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ABL Facility

Under the credit agreement governing the ABL fagilive and our restricted subsidiaries are suligeatnumber of business and
financial covenants, including a covenant requidmminimum fixed charge coverage ratio of at ldastto 1.0 effective when and if excess
availability is less than the greater of (a) $3@i0ion and (b) the lesser of (i) 12.5% of the ambaf the aggregate borrowing base or
(i) $37.5 million. Although the covenant was noggered as of July 2, 2011, our fixed charge cagerratio as calculated under this cove
was greater than 1.1 to 1.0. If availability issiésan $37.5 million, the lenders will take dommimver the cash and will apply excess cash to
reduce amounts owing under the facility. The cradieement governing the ABL facility requires asrtaintain aggregate excess availab
of at least $15.0 million. We were in compliancehnall of the applicable covenants under the ABtilfiy on July 2, 2011.

Capital Structure

Since January 1, 2011, equity has increased byt$dion. The increase was primarily the resulnet income of $33.3 million, the
issuance of $1.1 million in treasury stock relatedtock-based awards that vested during thetfaktof 2011, $2.7 million of share-based
compensation expense and a decrease in other doemgiee loss of $11.0 million primarily relatedatdoreign currency translation gain on
the net assets of self-sustaining foreign operatioffset in part by a $1.1 million decrease iniggim non-controlling interests.

Dividend Payments

There are certain restrictions on the paymentwtidhds under our ABL facility and under the indees governing the 2017 Notes and
2018 Notes. No dividends payments were made ddhiadirst half of 2011 or in 2010 and we do notestpto pay dividends in the forseeable
future.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Our critical accounting policies require managentemhake estimates and assumptions that affeceff@ted amounts in the
consolidated financial statements and the acconipgmpotes. These estimates are based on histesipakience, the advice of external
experts or on other assumptions management believesreasonable. Where actual amounts differ gstimates, revisions are included in
the results for the period in which actuals becémawvn. Historically, differences between estimated actuals have not had a significant
impact on our consolidated financial statements.

Critical accounting policies and estimates usegrépare the financial statements are discussedouithudit Committee as they are
implemented and on an annual basis.

We have no material changes to our Critical AccimgniPolicies and Estimates disclosure as filedunAnnual Report on Form 10-K
for the year ended January 1, 2011.

Forward-looking Statements

In addition to historical information, this repaonily contain statements relating to future evendsfature results. These statements are
“forward-looking” within the meaning of the Privagecurities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 and applile Canadian securities legislation
and involve known and unknown risks, uncertaintieijre expectations and other factors that mageaatual results, performance or
achievements of Cott Corporation to be materiaiffecent from any future results, performance dniagements expressed or implied by s
forward-looking statements. Such statements inglbdeare not limited to, statements that relaterajections of sales, earnings, earnings per
share, cash flows, capital expenditures or otmamitial items, discussions of estimated futuremegeenhancements and cost savings. These
statements also relate to our business strategys gad expectations concerning our market positidore operations, margins, profitability,
liquidity and capital resources. Generally, wordstsas “anticipate,” “believe,” “continue,” “couldiendeavor,” “estimate,” “expect,”

“intend,” “may,” “will,” “plan,” “predict,” “project,” “should” and similar terms and phrases are usddentify forward-looking statements in
this report and in the documents incorporated isréport by reference. These forward-looking steets reflect current expectations
regarding future events and operating performandeagae made only as of the date of this report.

The forward-looking statements are not guarantéésgure performance or events and, by their natare based on certain estimates
and assumptions regarding interest and foreignamgd rates, expected growth, results of operatimréormance, business prospects and
opportunities and effective income tax rates, whinh subject to inherent risks and uncertaintiesteMal factors or assumptions that were
applied in drawing a conclusion or making an estinst out in forward-looking statements may inelualt are not limited to assumptions
regarding management’s current plans and estimatesbility to remain a low cost supplier, andeeffve management of commaodity costs.
Although we believe the assumptions underlyingeatfesward-looking statements are reasonable, atlyesie assumptions could prove to be
inaccurate and, as a result, the forwimuking statements based on those assumptions poale to be incorrect. Our operations involve s
and uncertainties, many of which are outside ofamuntrol, and any one or any combination of théslesrand uncertainties could also affect
whether the forward-looking statements ultimatelyve to be correct. These risks and uncertaintielside, but are not limited to, those
described in Part I, Item 1A. “Risk Factors” in ddmnual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended dand, 2011, and those described from
time to time in our future reports filed with the@irities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) and Cameskcurities regulatory authorities.
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The following are some of the factors that couléetf our financial performance, including but riatited to sales, earnings and cash
flows, or could cause actual results to differ matly from estimates contained in or underlying forward-looking statements:

e our ability to realize the expected benefits of @ifstar Acquisition because of integration diffities and other challenge
» risks associated with the Asset Purchase Agreeergated into in connection with the Cliffstar Acsjtion;

» the effectiveness of Cliffst's system of internal control over financial repugti

» significant transaction and acquisit-related costs incurred in connection with the &tédf Acquisition:

» our ability to compete successfully in the hightyrpetitive beverage catego

» changes in consumer tastes and preferences faingqsoducts and our ability to develop and timialynch new products that
appeal to such changing consumer tastes and pneés;

» loss of or a reduction in sales to any significaugtomer, particularly Walmai

» fluctuations in commodity prices and our abilityass on increased costs to our customers, anchgaet of those increased
prices on our volume:!

e our ability to manage our operations successf

» currency fluctuations that adversely affect thehexge between the U.S. dollar and the British pateding, the Euro, the
Canadian dollar, the Mexican peso and other cuiesr

* our ability to maintain favorable arrangements exidtionships with our supplier

e our ability to remediate an identified material Weess;

» the substantial indebtedness we incurred and alittyab meet our obligations

e our ability to maintain compliance with the covetsaand conditions under our debt agreeme
+ fluctuations in interest rate

» credit rating change:

» the impact of global financial events on our finahecesults;

» our ability to fully realize the expected cost sms and/or operating efficiencies from our restiting activities;
» any disruption to production at our beverage cotraés or other manufacturing facilitie

e our ability to protect our intellectual proper

« compliance with product health and safety stand:

 liability for injury or illness caused by the comsption of contaminated produc

« liability and damage to our reputation as a restilitigation or legal proceeding

» changes in the legal and regulatory environmenthith we operate

» the impact of proposed taxes on soda and otherysdgaks;

» enforcement of compliance with the Ontario Enviremtal Protection Act

* unseasonably cold or wet weather, which could redignand for our beveragt
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» the impact of national, regional and global eveimtsuding those of a political, economic, businaeg competitive natur:

e our ability to recruit, retain, and integrate newrmagement and a new management struc

e our exposure to intangible asset ri

» volatility of our stock price

e our ability to maintain compliance with the listingquirements of the New York Stock Exchar

» our ability to renew our collective bargaining agreents on satisfactory tern

» disruptions in our information systen

» compliance with product health and safety standanc

» liability for injury or illness caused by the comsption of contaminated produc

For a further list and description of various riskedevant factors and uncertainties that couldseduture results or events to differ

materially from those expressed or implied in ammard-looking statements, see the “Risk Factonsl ‘@anagement’s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Gqiems” sections contained elsewhere in this doeuy@s well as in our Annual Report on

Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended January 1, 2@b¥ subsequent Reports on Form 10-Q and FornaBeKother filings with the SEC and
Canadian securities regulatory authorities.

We undertake no obligation to update any informmationtained in this report or to publicly reledse tesults of any revisions to
forward-looking statements to reflect events ocwinstances of which we may become aware of afgedalte of this report. Undue reliance
should not be placed on forward-looking statemeantd, all future written and oral forward-lookingt&ments attributable to us or persons
acting on our behalf are expressly qualified inrteatirety by the foregoing.

Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Marlet Risk
We do not trade market risk sensitive instruments.

Currency Exchange Rate Risk

The Company’s North America operating segment pasek a portion of its inventory for its Canadiarragions through transactions
denominated and settled in U.S. dollars, a currelifégrent from the functional currency of the Cdraan operations. These inventory
purchases are subject to exposure from movemestscimange rates. The Company uses foreign excfangard contracts to hedge
operational exposures resulting from changes iseti@reign currency exchange rates. The interti@fdreign exchange contracts is to
provide predictability in the Company’s overall tefructure. These foreign exchange contractsiechat fair value, have maturities less than
one year. As of July 2, 2011, the Company had antkhg foreign exchange forward contracts withara amounts of $9.6 million.

Debt Obligations and Interest Rates

We have exposure to interest rate risk from thetantling principal amounts of our short-term amdyiterm debt. Our longerm debt i
fixed and our short-term debt is variable. Our Afatility is vulnerable to fluctuations in the U $hort-term base rate and the LIBOR rate. At
current debt levels as of July 2, 2011, a 100 hasiist increase in the current per annum inteiagst for our ABL facility (excluding the $9.5
million outstanding letters of credit) would resimt$0.2 million of additional interest expenseidgrthe next year. This change would not be
material to our cash flows or our results of ogerst. The weighted average interest rate of out detstanding at July 2, 2011 was 8.0%.

Commodity Price Risk

We have no material changes to the disclosureismthtter made in our Annual Report on Form 10-Ktfie year ended January 1,
2011.
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ltem 4. Controls and Procedures
Disclosure Controls and Procedures

The Company maintains disclosure controls and phaes as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15¢ledSecurities Exchange Act
of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”). The Camijsananagement, under the supervision and witlp#rgcipation of the Company’s
Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officearried out an evaluation of the effectivenesthefdesign and operation of the
Company’s disclosure controls and procedures damifary 1, 2011 (the “Evaluation”). Based uponBhaluation, the Company’s Chief
Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer comdéd that, as of July 2, 2011, the Compardisclosure controls and procedures (as de
in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15(d)-15(e) of the Exchahg® were not effective as a result of the mateniabkness that is described below. We
have taken steps and are taking the actions descnilore fully below under “Remediation Activitie® remediate the material weakness.

As described in the Company’s Form 10-K for therymaded January 1, 2011, the Company did not maieffective controls over the
communication and evaluation of a certain custosndiscount and pricing programs. The Company’srobptocedures identified certain
differences requiring further investigation, anairol procedures in place were either not adequatesigned or did not operate effectively to
ensure that these differences with financial repgrimplications were communicated completely, aately, and in a timely manner to
appropriate accounting personnel. This controlailefficy resulted in immaterial pricing errors impagtrevenue, accounts receivable and
accrued expenses with respect to one of our cussodueing the quarter ended October 2, 2010 that werrected through a revision to the
Company’s interim financial statements in Note 22hie Annual Report on Form X0for the fiscal year ended January 1, 2011. Addéily,
this control deficiency, if not remedied, coulduksn further misstatements of the aforementioaecounts and disclosures that would result
in a material misstatement of the annual or intesimsolidated financial statements that would roptevented or detected. Accordingly, the
Company’s management determined this control daf@i constituted a material weakness and has deexirthat it continues to exist as of
July 2, 2011.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

The remediation efforts noted below represent caamgour internal control over financial reportigring the first half of 2011 that
have materially affected, or are reasonably likelynaterially affect, the Company’s internal cohtyeer financial reporting.

Remediation Activities

Beginning in January 2011, with oversight from fhelit Committee of the Company’s Board of Directdiree Company’s management
began to design and implement certain remediatieasures to address the above-described materikhesgsaand enhance the Company’s
system of internal control over financial reportiimrluding expanded reviews and evaluations ofiigecustomer accounts receivable aging
and promotional activities reports and re-assigriroéeenior accounting personnel to oversee theifsipeustomer activities.

The Company believes the remediation measurestréhgthen the Company’s internal control overrfiial reporting and remediate
the material weakness identified. However, thesasuees had not been in operation long enough ¢atefély measure their operating
effectiveness and thus, the identified materialkmeas has not been fully remediated as of Jul¥Y212We will continue to monitor the
effectiveness of these remediation measures ahdmake any changes and take such other actionsvthdeem appropriate given the
circumstances.

PART Il - OTHER INFORMATION
Item 1. Legal Proceedings
Reference is made to the legal proceedings descibaeur Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fisgehr ended January 1, 2011.

Item 1A. Risk Factors

Reference is made to the detailed descriptions&ffectors in ltem 1A: Risk Factors in our Annu@rt on Form 10-K for the fiscal
year ended January 1, 20
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Iltem 6.

Number

3.1

3.2

311

31.2

32.1

32.2

101*

Exhibits

Description

Articles of Amalgamation of Cott Corporation (inporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to our FormKl@ated February 28,
2007).

Second Amended and Restated By-laws of Cott Cotiporéincorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to &orm 10-Q filed
May 10, 2007)

Certification of the Chief Executive Officer pursudo section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2fad2he quarterly period
ended July 2, 2011 (filed herewitl

Certification of the Chief Financial Officer pursuao section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2fad2he quarterly period
ended July 2, 2011 (filed herewitl

Certification of the Chief Executive Officer pursudo section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2fab2he quarterly period
ended July 2, 2011 (furnished herewit

Certification of the Chief Financial Officer pursuao section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2fad2he quarterly period
ended July 2, 2011 (furnished herewit

The following financial statements from Cott Corgiion’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the geagnded July 2, 2011,
filed on August 9, 2011, formatted in XBRL (eXtdnlsi Business Reporting Language): (i) Consolid&edements of
Operations, (ii) Consolidated Balance Sheets,@idpsolidated Statements of Cash Flows, (iv) Cadatdd Statements of
Equity (v) Condensed Consolidated Statements offZehensive Income (vi) Notes to the Consolidateditial Statements,
tagged as blocks of te

* Filed herewith
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgé Act of 1934, the registrant has duly causisdréport to be signed on its behalf by the
undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

COTT CORPORATION
(Registrant’

Date: August 9, 201: /s/ Neal Craven
Neal Craven:
Chief Financial Officer
(On behalf of the Compan'

Date: August 9, 201: /sl Gregory Leite
Gregory Leiter
Senior Vice President, Chief Accounting Officer and
Assistant Secretary
(Principal Accounting Officer
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Exhibit Index

Number

3.1

3.2

311

31.2

32.1

32.2

101*

Description

Articles of Amalgamation of Cott Corporation (inporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to our FormKl@ated February 28,
2007).

Second Amended and Restated By-laws of Cott Cotiporéincorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to &orm 10-Q filed
May 10, 2007)

Certification of the Chief Executive Officer pursudo section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2fad2he quarterly period
ended July 2, 2011 (filed herewitl

Certification of the Chief Financial Officer pursuao section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2fad2he quarterly period
ended July 2, 2011 (filed herewitl

Certification of the Chief Executive Officer pursudo section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2fab2he quarterly period
ended July 2, 2011 (furnished herewit

Certification of the Chief Financial Officer pursuao section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2fad2he quarterly period
ended July 2, 2011 (furnished herewit

The following financial statements from Cott Corgiion’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the geagnded July 2, 2011,
filed on August 9, 2011, formatted in XBRL (eXtdnlsi Business Reporting Language): (i) Consolid&edements of
Operations, (ii) Consolidated Balance Sheets,@idpsolidated Statements of Cash Flows, (iv) Cadatdd Statements of
Equity (v) Condensed Consolidated Statements offZehensive Income (vi) Notes to the Consolidatediitial Statements,
tagged as blocks of te

* Filed herewith
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Exhibit 31.1
CERTIFICATIONS PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBA NES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002.

I, Jerry Fowden, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this quarterly report on Forn-Q of Cott Corporation

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notatorny untrue statement of a material fact or emnittate a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in ligheafircumstances under which such statementsmwade, not misleading with
respect to the period covered by this reg

3.  Based on my knowledge, the financial statemeamd,other financial information included in théport, fairly presentin all
material respects the financial condition, resofteperations and cash flows of the registrantfaara for, the periods presentet
this report;

4.  The registrans other certifying officer and | are responsibledstablishing and maintaining disclosure contamid procedures (
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&)1%nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13-15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and hav

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedaresused such disclosure controls and procedaoites designed under
our supervision, to ensure that material infornmatielating to the registrant, including its condatied subsidiaries, is made
known to us by others within those entities, pattidy during the period in which this report isifige prepared

b) Designed such internal control over financiglaiing, or caused such internal control over faiakreporting to be
designed under our supervision, to provide readerasurance regarding the reliability of financegorting and the
preparation of financial statements for externappses in accordance with generally accepted atioguprinciples;

C) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registsadisclosure controls and procedures and preséntbd report our conclusio
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contintsprocedures, as of the end of the period cousyeldis report based on
such evaluation; ar

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the tegig’s internal control over financial reportirttat occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regidts fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annyabrrg that has materiall
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeaft, the registra’s internal control over financial reporting; &

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer anddve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatioriernal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the
equivalent functions)

a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal cortvelr financial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affectrgistrant’s ability to record, process, summasiad report financial
information; anc

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invalveanagement or other employees who have a signifiole in the
registran’'s internal control over financial reportir

August 9, 2011 /sl Jerry Fowdel
Jerry Fowder
Chief Executive Office




Exhibit 31.2
CERTIFICATIONS PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBA NES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002.

I, Neal Cravens, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this quarterly report on Forn-Q of Cott Corporation

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notatorny untrue statement of a material fact or emnittate a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in ligheafircumstances under which such statementsmwade, not misleading with
respect to the period covered by this reg

3.  Based on my knowledge, the financial statemeamd,other financial information included in théport, fairly presentin all
material respects the financial condition, resofteperations and cash flows of the registrantfaara for, the periods presentet
this report;

4.  The registrans other certifying officer and | are responsibledstablishing and maintaining disclosure contamid procedures (
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&)1%nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13-15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and hav

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedaresused such disclosure controls and procedaoites designed under
our supervision, to ensure that material infornmatielating to the registrant, including its condatied subsidiaries, is made
known to us by others within those entities, pattidy during the period in which this report isifige prepared

b) Designed such internal control over financiglaiing, or caused such internal control over faiakreporting to be
designed under our supervision, to provide readerasurance regarding the reliability of financegorting and the
preparation of financial statements for externappses in accordance with generally accepted atioguprinciples;

C) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registsadisclosure controls and procedures and preséntbd report our conclusio
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contintsprocedures, as of the end of the period cousyeldis report based on
such evaluation; ar

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the tegig’s internal control over financial reportirtgat occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regidts fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annyabrrg that has materiall
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeaft, the registra’s internal control over financial reporting; &

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer anddve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatioriernal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the
equivalent functions)

a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal cortvelr financial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affectrgistrant’s ability to record, process, summasiad report financial
information; anc

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invalveanagement or other employees who have a signifiole in the
registran’'s internal control over financial reportir

August 9, 2011 /sl Neal Craven
Neal Craven:
Chief Financial Officel




Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350 ASADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-
OXLEY ACT OF 2002

The undersigned, Jerry Fowden, Chief Executived®ffof Cott Corporation (the “Company”), has exeduthis certification in connection
with the filing with the Securities and Exchangen@oission of the Company’s Quarterly Report on F&0¥Q for the quarter ended July 2,
2011 (the “Report”).
The undersigned hereby certifies that to the bielsiscknowledge:
(1) The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeoh 1934; anc
(2) The information contained in the Report faphesents, in all material respects, the finan@alition and results of operations of
the Company

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has executiscctrtification as of the® day of August, 2011.
/sl Jerry Fowdel

Jerry Fowder
Chief Executive Office




Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350 ASADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-
OXLEY ACT OF 2002

The undersigned, Neal Cravens, Chief Financialo®ffof Cott Corporation (the “Company”), has exedutis certification in connection
with the filing with the Securities and Exchangen@oission of the Company’s Quarterly Report on F&0¥Q for the quarter ended July 2,
2011 (the “Report”).
The undersigned hereby certifies that to the bielsiscknowledge:
(1) The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeoh 1934; anc
(2) The information contained in the Report faphesents, in all material respects, the finan@alition and results of operations of
the Company

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has executiscctrtification as of the® day of August, 2011.
/s/ Neal Craven

Neal Craven:
Chief Financial Officel




